
           
CITY OF TEXAS CITY

REGULAR CALLED CITY COMMISSION MEETING

AGENDA

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 15, 2023 - 5:00 P.M.
KENNETH T. NUNN COUNCIL ROOM -  CITY HALL

 1801 9th Ave. N.
Texas City, TX  77590

PLEASE NOTE: Public comments and matters from the floor are generally limited to 3 minutes in length.
If you would like to request to speak, please do so in advance of the meeting by filling out a Request To
Address Commission form. All in attendance are required to remove hats and/or sunglasses (dark
glasses) during meetings and to also silence all cell phones and electronic devices.
 

           
(1) ROLL CALL   
 

(2) INVOCATION   
 

(3) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 

(4) PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS   
 

(a) Service Awards    
Justin Herter Legal 11/07/2013 10 years
Glenn Park Public Works 11/17/2008 15 years
Edward Cafarella Public Works 11/10/2008 15 years
Jerald Ford Sanitation 11/17/2003 20 years

 
(b) Proclaiming November 6, 2023 - November 10, 2023, as Municipal Court Week.

 
(5) REPORTS   
 

(a) Emergency Management Report (Emergency Management)
 
(6) PUBLIC COMMENTS   
 

(7) CONSENT AGENDA   
 

(a) Approve City Commission Minutes for the November 1, 2023 meeting. (City Secretary)



 
(b) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-126, authorizing the purchase of six

(6) vehicles, for multiple departments, from Chastang Ford in Houston, Texas via the
BuyBoard Purchasing Cooperative. (Public Works)

 
(c) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-127, authorizing the casting of one

hundred ninety-three (193) for Matt Doyle and two (2) votes for Donald Gartman by the
City of Texas City, to serve on the Galveston Central Appraisal District (GCAD) Board of
Directors, for the 2024-2025 term. (City Secretary's Office)

 
(d) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-128, approving an engagement of

ABHR (a law firm) for review, representation, and legal counsel regarding the formulation
of a TIRZ (Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone) for the Minto Communities Texas,
LLC project.  (City Engineer)

 
(e) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-129, approving the executing of an

Engineering Agreement with ARKK Engineer, LLC., from Houston, Texas, for the Water
Line Replacement Project - Phase 21. (Public Works)

 
(f) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-130, approving the execution of an

Engineering Service Agreement with ARKK Engineers, LLC., from Houston Texas, for
the Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project - Phase 23. (Public Works)

 
(g) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-131, approving the execution of an

Engineering Agreement with ARKK Engineers, LLC., from Houston, Texas, for the Lift
Stations 7 and 15 Rehabilitation Project. (Public Works)

 
(h) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-132, authorizing the first payment to

Gulf Coast Water Authority for the City's portion of the Shannon pump station
rehabilitation. (Public Works)

 
(i) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-133, authorizing the disbursement and

awarding a Commissioners Community Grant to the Front Door Social and Charity Club
(FDSCC) on behalf of Mayor Pro Tem Bowie. (Mayor's Office - Grants Administration)

 
(j) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-134, renewing an agreement between

the City of Texas City and the Texas City-La Marque Chamber of Commerce. (Economic
Development)

 
(8) REGULAR ITEMS   
 

(a) Consider and take action on the third and final reading of Ordinance No.
2023-39, amending the Texas City Code of Ordinances Title XV Entitled “Land Usage,”
Chapter 150: Building Regulations; Construction" to adopt the most current International
Building Codes. (Legal/Building Official)

 
(b) Consider and take action on the third and final reading of Ordinance No.



(b) Consider and take action on the third and final reading of Ordinance No.
2023-40, amending the Texas City Code of Ordinances Title XV Entitled “Land Usage,”
Chapter 152: Gas," to adopt the most current International Building
Codes. (Legal/Building Official)

 
(c) Consider and take action on the third and final reading of Ordinance No.

2023-41, amending the Texas City Code of Ordinances Title XV Entitled “Land Usage,”
Chapter 153: Mechanical Regulations," to adopt the most current International Building
Codes. (Legal/Building Official)

 
(d) Consider and take action on the third and final reading of Ordinance No.

2023-42, amending the Texas City Code of Ordinances Title XV Entitled “Land Usage,”
Chapter 154: Plumbing," to adopt the most current International Building
Codes. (Legal/Building Official)

 
(e) Consider and take action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 2023-43, amending the

Texas City Code of Ordinances entitled "General Regulations", Chapter 90: "Streets
Sidewalks and Other Public Places" to adopt and become effective upon its final
reading. (City Engineer)

 
(f) Consider and take action on Ordinance No. 2023-44, amending the fiscal year 2023/2024

budget to include outstanding encumbrances from the 2022/2023 fiscal year. (Finance)
 

(g) Consider and take action on Ordinance No. 2023-45 to permanently rezone for Linda
Duncan/Moses Lake Marina Boat and RV Storage from District "O" (Open Space) to
District "E-4" (Commercial Warehouse). (City Engineer)

 
(h) Consider and take action on Ordinance No. 2023-46, amending the 2023-2024 Fiscal

Year Budget to account for repairs to the Dike Road bridge. (Finance)
 
(9) COMMISSIONERS' COMMENTS   
 

(10) MAYOR'S COMMENTS   
 

(11) ADJOURNMENT   
 

NOTICE OF ANY SUBJECT APPEARING ON THIS AGENDA REGARDLESS OF HOW THE MATTER
IS STATED MAY BE ACTED UPON BY THE CITY COMMISSION.
NOTICE: The City of Texas City will furnish free transportation to handicapped individuals via a 4-door
sedan for anyone wishing to attend the City Commission meetings.  Call 948-3111, City Secretary's
Office before noon on Monday preceding the meeting to make arrangements.

I, THE UNDERSIGNED AUTHORITY, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS NOTICE OF MEETING WAS
POSTED ON THE BULLETIN BOARDS AT CITY HALL, 1801 9TH AVENUE NORTH, TEXAS CITY,
TEXAS, AT A PLACE CONVENIENT AND READILY ACCESSIBLE TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC AND
ON THE CITY'S WEBSITE ON NOVEMBER 10, 2023, PRIOR TO 5:00 P.M. AND REMAINED SO
POSTED CONTINUOUSLY FOR AT LEAST 72 HOURS PRECEDING THE SCHEDULED TIME OF



SAID MEETING.

______________________
RHOMARI LEIGH
CITY SECRETARY
  



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (4) (a)        
Meeting Date: 11/15/2023  
November 2023 Service Awards
Submitted For: Jennifer Price, Human Resources 
Submitted By: Susan Sensat, Human Resources
Department: Human Resources

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Service Awards      
Justin Herter Legal 11/07/2013 10 years
Glenn Park Public Works 11/17/2008 15 years
Edward Cafarella Public Works 11/10/2008 15 years
Jerald Ford Sanitation 11/17/2003 20 years

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
Service Award(s) for the following individual(s) for the month of November is based on their
years of service with the City. 

RECOMMENDATION
Human Resources recommend approval of the November service awards.

Fiscal Impact



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (4) (b)        
Meeting Date: 11/15/2023  
Submitted By: Rhomari Leigh, City Secretary
Department: City Secretary

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Proclamation For Municipal Courts Week 2023

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
RECOMMENDATION

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
attachment 





   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (5) (a)        
Meeting Date: 11/15/2023  
Emergency Management Report
Submitted For: Joe Tumbleson, Emergency Management 
Submitted By: Rhomari Leigh, City Secretary
Department: Emergency Management

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Emergency Management Report (Emergency Management)

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
RECOMMENDATION

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Staff Report 



CITY OF TEXAS CITY

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT
&
HOMELAND SECURITY
JOE TUMBLESON



EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT

• Myself and Mike Nations 

• Communications, Police, Fire, Public Works, Parks, IT, 
Engineering, Finance, Purchasing, Legal, Library, Courts, City 
Hall, Mayor and Commissioners. 



Phases of Emergency Management
• Mitigation

• Prevent or lessen the effects of a disaster.

• Preparedness
• Planning for disasters in an all-hazards approach.  Trying to predict what the next 

disaster might be and ensuring everyone is prepared.

• Response 
• Utilize the ICS to ensure the most efficient and effective response
• This would include responses from different types of agencies, PD, Fire, EMS, state, 

local, federal, contractors, non-profits, media, RP, and numerous other types of 
organizations.

• Recovery
• Use every available resource to recover from the disaster, not only to get back to 

normal but to be better than before.
 



PRIMARY RESPONSIBILITY OF                  
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT

• To ensure the safety and security of the public 
•  Industrial/hazmat incidents
• Weather-related incidents
• Active violence incidents
• Medical emergencies



STAKEHOLDERS

• Citizens (largest stakeholder)
• Local Businesses (public-private 

relationships)
• FEMA
• EPA
• TDEM
• TCEQ
• TRRC
• USCG
• DPS
• GCSO
• GCEM
• GCHD
• LEPC
• GLO



STAKEHOLDERS

• IMAS
• CTEH
• TNMP
• TxDOT
• CTEH
• CenterPoint
• Port of Texas City
• Army Corp of Engineers
• NWS
• Storm Geo
• TCISD
• Dickinson ISD
• College of the Mainland
• Local Police, Fire, EMS, Public Works, 

Parks, IT
• Hospitals



STAKEHOLDERS

• United Way
• Red Cross
• Salvation Army
• Food Bank
• Mainland Community Partners
• Gulf Coast Centers
• 4B Disaster Response Network
• Gulf Coast Transit District
• Churches
• Industry
• Contractors 
• Debris removal contractors
• Monitoring contractors
• Environmental contractors
• News media
• Texas City LaMarque Chamber of 

Commerce



EMERGENCY ALERTS AND 
WARNINGS

• Emergency Management Facebook, Instagram, Twitter 
(over 13K followers)

• City of Texas City Facebook, Instagram, Twitter
(over 40k followers)

• City website
• Community sirens
• Everbridge system to notify the public (51,502 contacts)
• IPAWS



STAY UP TO DATE:

•www.mytcalerts.com

•www.texascitytx.gov 

•www.facebook.com/texascityem

http://www.mytcalerts.com/
http://www.facebook.com/texascityem
http://www.facebook.com/texascityem


ACTIVATED THE EOC 17 TIMES 
SINCE DECEMBER  2022

• 12-23-22 Industrial flaring   

• 01-05-23 Dow vapor leak

• 01-09-23 Dow vapor leak

• 01-12-23 Marathon Level 1a small fire

• 01-13-23 Marathon upset-flaring

• 01-18-23 Dunn Heat Level 1A fire

• 01-18-23 Marathon Level IIA - oil spill

• 03-16-23 O'Reilly Auto Parts fire

• 05-17-23 Marathon fire/fatality



ACTIVATED THE EOC 17 TIMES 
SINCE DECEMBER  2022

• 06-14-23 Enterprise pipeline leak

• 06-27-23 Marathon shelter-in-place

• 07-06-23 Boil water notice

• 07-19-23 Sulfur Bentonite spill on FM 1765

• 08-31-23 Hoax active shooter threat to TCHS

• 09-07-23 Marathon fire

• 10-08-23 Air Products HCL

• 10-12-23 Eastman DMT



SITREP REPORTS

Significant 
Activation of 
the Emergency 
Operations 
Center



THANK 
YOU

Joe Tumbleson

409.739.4799

jtumbleson@texascitytx.gov

www.texascitytx.gov

http://www.fabrikam.com/


   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (7) (a)        
Meeting Date: 11/15/2023  
Submitted By: Rhomari Leigh, City Secretary
Department: City Secretary

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Approve City Commission Minutes for the November 1, 2023 meeting. (City Secretary)

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
RECOMMENDATION

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Minutes 



REGULAR CALLED CITY COMMISSION MEETING

M I N U T E S 

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 1, 2023 – 5:00 P.M.
KENNETH T. NUNN COUNCIL ROOM – CITY HALL

A Regular Called Meeting of the City Commission was held on Wednesday, NOVEMBER 1, 2023, at
5:00 P.M. in the Kenneth T. Nunn Council Room in City Hall, Texas City, Texas. A quorum having been
met, the meeting was called to order at 5:01 p.m. by Mayor Dedrick D. Johnson.
 

               
1. ROLL CALL

Present: Dedrick D. Johnson, Mayor   
Abel Garza, Jr. , Commissioner At-Large   
Felix Herrera, Commissioner District 2   
Dorthea Jones Pointer, Commissioner District 3   
Jami Clark, Commissioner District 4   

Absent: Thelma Bowie, Commissioner At-Large, Mayor Pro Tem
  DeAndre' Knoxson, Commissioner District 1

2. INVOCATION

Led by Jon Branson, Executive Director of Management Services.
 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Led by Commissioner District 2 Felix Herrera.
 
4. REPORTS
 

a. Human Resources Annual Report (HR)

Jennifer Price, HR Director, gave a PowerPoint presentation on open enrollment for 2024
health insurance.

  

 
b. Finance Quarterly Report for the quarter ended September 30, 2023.

Laura Boyd, Finance Director, gave a presentation on the investment portfolio for the quarter
ending September 30, 2023.

  

 
5. PUBLIC COMMENTS

There were none.
 
6. CONSENT AGENDA



6. CONSENT AGENDA

Commissioner District 4 Jami Clark motioned to approve Consent Agenda items a, b, c, d, f, g,
h, i, and j. The motion was seconded by Commissioner District 2 Felix Herrera.

 
a. Approve City Commission Minutes for the October 18, 2023 meeting. (City Secretary)   

 
  Vote: 5 - 0 CARRIED

 
b. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-117, approving a ARKK Engineers, LLC.

purchase order change orders for the City of Texas City's GLO Contract No. 22-119-003-D373
Community Development Block Grant Mitigation Program Infrastructure Projects
Non-Research & Development Mitigation Funding. (Public Works)

  

 
  Vote: 5 - 0 CARRIED

 
c. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2013-118, approving an extension of the

agreement for professional services with Public Consulting Group, Inc. (PCG) to continue a
program that provides additional revenue to the Fire Department EMS program through the
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) Ambulance Supplemental Pay Program
(ASPP). (Fire Department)

  

 
  Vote: 5 - 0 CARRIED

 
d. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-119, authorizing the purchase of 462 Visa

gift cards in the amount of $50.00 each to be given to the City Employees (full time and
part-time), as an incentive for continued outstanding customer service and performance.
(Human Resources)

  

 
  Vote: 5 - 0 CARRIED

 
e. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-120, ratification of the submission of the

application to HUD for the PRO Housing Grant. (Community Development/Grants
Administration)

This item was pulled and removed by Mayor Dedrick Johnson. 

  

 
f. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-121, authorizing the purchase of a 2025

International 14 yard dump truck from Santex Truck Center, LTD in San Antonio, Texas
through the HGACBuy Cooperative Purchasing Program for the total contract price of
$140,381.00. (Public Works)

  

 
  Vote: 5 - 0 CARRIED

 
g. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-122, authorizing the purchase of a Tymco

model 600 sweeper from Tymco, Inc. through a BuyBoard purchasing cooperative for the total
contract amount of $358,948.20. (Public Works)

  

 



  Vote: 5 - 0 CARRIED

 
h. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-123, authorizing the purchase of a 2024

F350 truck with utility bed and crane, for the Traffic Department, from Chastang
Ford via BuyBoard, a Local Government Purchasing Cooperative for the contract price
of $68,296.00. (Public Works)

  

 
  Vote: 5 - 0 CARRIED

 
i. Consider and take action Resolution No. 2023-124, authorizing the purchase, delivery and

installation of a Covered Outdoor Commercial Adult Fitness Station for Carver Park from
Playpower LT Farmington, Inc through BuyBoard (Contract No.  679-22) – local government
purchasing cooperative, in the amount of $112,073.00. (Recreation and Tourism)

  

 
  Vote: 5 - 0 CARRIED

 
j. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-125 approving the purchase of construction

services for Godard Park Buildings from Generocity Services, Inc. (Contract No.
23/016MR-17) - local government purchasing cooperative, in the amount of $59,732.05.
(Recreation and Tourism)

  

 
  Vote: 5 - 0 CARRIED

 
7. REGULAR ITEMS
 

a. Consider and take action on the third and final reading of Ordinance No. 2023-37, amending
the Texas City Code of Ordinances Title XV Entitled “Land Usage,” Chapter 151: Electricity;
Section 151.080 Entitled “National Electrical Code Adopted: Conflicting Regulations."
(Legal/Building Official)

  

 
  Motion by Commissioner At-Large Abel Garza, Jr., Seconded by Commissioner District 2

Felix Herrera 

  Vote: 5 - 0 CARRIED

 
b. Consider and take action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 2023-39, amending the

Texas City Code of Ordinances Title XV Entitled “Land Usage,” Chapter 150: Building
Regulations; Construction" to adopt the most current International Building
Codes. (Legal/Building Official)

  

 
  Motion by Commissioner District 2 Felix Herrera, Seconded by Commissioner District 3

Dorthea Jones Pointer 

  Vote: 5 - 0 CARRIED

 
c. Consider and take action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 2023-40, amending the

Texas City Code of Ordinances Title XV Entitled “Land Usage,” Chapter 152: Gas," to adopt
the most current International Building Codes. (Legal/Building Official)

  

 



  Motion by Commissioner District 3 Dorthea Jones Pointer, Seconded by Commissioner
District 2 Felix Herrera 

  Vote: 5 - 0 CARRIED

 
d. Consider and take action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 2023-41, amending the

Texas City Code of Ordinances Title XV Entitled “Land Usage,” Chapter 153: Mechanical
Regulations," to adopt the most current International Building Codes. (Legal/Building Official)

  

 
  Motion by Commissioner District 3 Dorthea Jones Pointer, Seconded by Commissioner

District 2 Felix Herrera 

  Vote: 5 - 0 CARRIED

 
e. Consider and take action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 2023-42, amending the

Texas City Code of Ordinances Title XV Entitled “Land Usage,” Chapter 154: Plumbing," to
adopt the most current International Building Codes. (Legal/Building Official)

  

 
  Motion by Commissioner District 3 Dorthea Jones Pointer, Seconded by Commissioner

District 2 Felix Herrera 

  Vote: 5 - 0 CARRIED

 
8. Commissioner District 1 DeAndre Knoxson entered the meeting.
 
9. ADJOURNMENT
 
Having no further business, Commissioner At-Large Abel Garza, Jr. made a MOTION to ADJOURN at
5:26 p.m.; the motion was SECONDED by Commissioner District 3 Dorthea Jones Pointer. All present
voted AYE. MOTION CARRIED.

  
 ______________________________
 DEDRICK D. JOHNSON, MAYOR

ATTEST:

_________________________________
Rhomari Leigh, City Secretary
Date Approved:



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (7) (b)        
Meeting Date: 11/15/2023  
Multi Departmental Vehicle Purchase
Submitted For: Mike McKinley, Public Works  Submitted By: Mike McKinley, Public

Works
Department: Public Works

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Approve the purchase of six (6) vehicles, for multiple departments, from Chastang Ford in
Houston Texas via the BuyBoard Purchasing Cooperative.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
As municipal fleet vehicles are still fairly scarce, staff has secured the following six (6)
vehicles for purchase:

Recreation and Tourism - 2 each of the 2023 Ford Escapes - $30,332.00 ea. Total
$60,664.00 (In stock)

Utilities - 2 each Ford Mavericks - $27,188.50  Total $54,377.00 (Build date in December
should be May or June for receiving)

Inspections - 1 each Ford Maverick - 27,188.00 (Build date in December should be May or
June for receiving)

Waste Water Treatment Plant  - 1 Ford F150 $44,996.00 (No build date yet but already on
dealer order)

In order to insure availability on these six vehicles beyond November 1, 2023, a" Letter of
Intent" was signed by the Public Works Director. This will hold these vehicles until
Commission approval.

The worksheets are attached for review.

RECOMMENDATION
It is the recommendation of the Public Works Department to approve the purchase of the six
(6) vehicles as described above.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Exhibit A 
Exhibit B 
Exhibit C 



Resolution 



CHASTANG ENTERPRISES HOUSTON LLC / DBA CHASTANG FORD

End User:  CHASTANG ED MILLER
Contact: Phone/fax:
Phone/email: Date:
Product Descrip             email:

A. Bid Series: R1A A. Base Price: 22355

B. Published Options [Itemize each below]
Code Options Bid Price Code Options Bid Price

    
 INCL    
    
    
 INCL   
    
    
    
     

   
    

-$                   

C. Unpublished Options [Itemize each below, not to exceed 25%] $= 8.535 %
Options Bid Price Options Bid Price

1908  
  
  
  
  
  

1,908.00$          

D. Pre-delivery Inspection: INCL 0

E. Texas State Inspection: INCL -$                   

F. Manufacturer Destination/Delivery: INCL

G. Floor Plan Interest (for in-stock and/or equipped vehicles): 388.00$        

H Lot Insurance (for in-stock and/or equipped vehicles): 194.00$             

 BUYBOARD WORKSHEET

 
 

 

601-19

 

 
 

713-678-5007

 
 

 
 

45225
emiller@chastangford.com2023 FORD RANGER

Total of B. Published Options:

 

 
POWER EQUIPMENT GROUP

 

 CREW CAB

 
 

 
 

 

Total of C. Unpublished Options:

  

 

 

 
 

  

 
 

 

UPGRADE TO MAVERICK  
 
 



I. Contract Price Adjustment: 2024 CONCESSION DIFFERENCE & PRICE INCREA 2210

J. Additional Delivery Charge: 0 miles 0

K. Subtotal: 27055

L. Quantity Ordered 3 x K = 81165

M. Trade in:  

N. BUYBOARD FEE 400

O. TOTAL PURCHASE PRICE 81565



CHASTANG ENTERPRISES HOUSTON LLC / DBA CHASTANG FORD

End User: TEXAS CITY CHASTANG ED MILLER
Contact: Phone/fax:
Phone/email: Date:
Product Descri             email:

A. Bid Series: ITEM 120 A. Base Price: 25455

B. Published Options [Itemize each below]
Code Options Bid Price Code Options Bid Price

 INCL MC23PA  
INCL    

QD1 1,995.00$       
    
    
    
    
    
    

   
    

1,995.00$          

C. Unpublished Options [Itemize each below, not to exceed 25%] $= 0 %
Options Bid Price Options Bid Price

  
  

 
  
  
  

-$                   

D. Pre-delivery Inspection: 0

E. Texas State Inspection: -$                   

F. Manufacturer Destination/Delivery:

G. Floor Plan Interest (for in-stock and/or equipped vehicles): 488.00$        

H Lot Insurance (for in-stock and/or equipped vehicles): 244.00$             

I. Contract Price Adjustment: CONCESSION DIFFFERENC 1950

J. Additional Delivery Charge: 0 miles 0

K. Subtotal: 30132

L. Quantity Ordered 2 x K = 60264

M. Trade in:  

N. BUYBOARD FEE 400

O. TOTAL PURCHASE PRICE 60664

 

 
 

  

 
 

 

  
 
 

 
 

 

 

Total of C. Unpublished Options:

  

 

 
 

10/25/223
emiller@chastangAUTOGROUP.com2023 FORD ESCAPE U0F

Total of B. Published Options:

 

 
8 SPEED AUTO

 

  

ITEM 3

 
 

 

BUYBOARD 601-19

 

OUT OF STOCK QUICKDEL
 

713-678-5007

 
1.5L ECOBOOST



Buy Board Contract  724-23

djhutchinson
Highlight









  

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-126 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF SIX (6) VEHICLES, 

FOR MULTIPLE DEPARTMENTS, FROM CHASTANG FORD INC., 

HOUSTON, TEXAS, VIA THE BUYBOARD PURCHASING COOPERATIVE 

(WORKSHEET 601-19 AND CONTRACT NO. 724-23); AND PROVIDING 

THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND 

AFTER ITS PASSAGE AND ADOPTION.  

 

WHEREAS, municipal fleet vehicles are scarce, but the City has been able to locate six (6) 

vehicles; and 

 

WHEREAS, two (2) vehicles will go to Recreation and Tourism, two (two) vehicles will go 

to Utilities, one (1) will go to Waste Water, and one (1) to the Inspections Department. The total 

price of the six (6) vehicles is $825,469.92; see attached; and 

 

WHEREAS, funds for this purchase are available in the City’s 2023/2024 budget. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS: 

 

SECTION 1: That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, hereby approves 

the purchase of six (6) vehicles for Recreation and Tourism, Utilities, Inspections, and Waste Water 

departments for a total price as set out on the quote attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part 

hereof for all intents and purposes.  

 

 SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 

and adoption. 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of November 2023. 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor  

      City of Texas City, Texas 

 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

_______________________    ____________________________    

Rhomari D. Leigh     Kyle L. Dickson 

City Secretary      City Attorney 



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (7) (c)        
Meeting Date: 11/15/2023  
Voting on the Election of Members of the Board of Directors for GCAD 24-25
Submitted For: Rhomari Leigh, City Secretary 
Submitted By: Rhomari Leigh, City Secretary
Department: City Secretary

Information
ACTION REQUEST
 Authorize the casting of one hundred ninety-three (193) for Matt Doyle and two (2) votes for
Donald Gartman by the City of Texas City, to serve on the Galveston Central Appraisal District
(GCAD) Board of Directors, for the 2024-2025 term.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
Bi-annually, the City of Texas City is offered the opportunity to cast all or a portion of their total
number of votes (195) for up to five (5) individuals to serve on the GCAD Board of Directors. 
In accordance with the Property Tax Code, the City of Texas City must pass a formal
resolution designating the number of votes cast for candidates.  The written resolution along
with the attached Ballot must be acted upon and submitted to Galveston Central Appraisal
District (GCAD) office before December 15, 2023.  Once all votes are received by GCAD,
they will tally the votes and notify all voting units of the outcome of the voting prior to
December 31, 2023.   

There is no direct financial impact regarding this action.

RECOMMENDATION
It is the recommendation of the Mayor to cast one hundred ninety-three (193) votes for Matt
Doyle and two (2) votes for Donald Gartman.  

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
attachment 
Resolution 









RESOLUTION NO. 2023-127 

 

A RESOLUTION CASTING THE CITY OF TEXAS CITY’S ONE 

HUNDRED AND NINETY-THREE (193) VOTES TO NOMINATE MATT 

DOYLE AND TWO (2) VOTES FOR DON GARTMAN  AS CANDIDATES 

TO SERVE ON THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE GALVESTON 

CENTRAL APPRAISAL DISTRICT; AND PROVIDING THAT THIS 

RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS 

PASSAGE AND ADOPTION. 

WHEREAS, this is the selection year for the Board of Directors of the Galveston Central 

Appraisal District; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors consists of five (5) members who serve (2) year terms, 

beginning January 1, 2024, through December 31, 2025; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Texas City is a voting unit entitled to vote for up to five (5) 

candidates from a ballot submitted by the Galveston Central Appraisal District, if so desired; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, nominates Matt Doyle 

and Don Gartman as the candidates for the Board of Directors of the Galveston Central Appraisal 

District; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Galveston Central Appraisal District requests 

that the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, cast its votes for the nominated 

candidates by written Resolution to the Chief Appraiser before December 16, 2023.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS: 
 

SECTION 1:  That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, authorizes 

casting one hundred and ninety-three (193) votes to nominate Matt Doyle and casts two (2) votes 

to nominate Don Gartman to serve on the Board of Directors for the Galveston Central Appraisal 

District for the term January 1, 2024, through December 31, 2025.  
 

SECTION 2:  That the number of votes cast for the candidate(s), as exhibited in the 

attached ballot, be submitted by the City of Texas City to the Galveston Central Appraisal District. 
 

SECTION 3:  That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, hereby directs 

the City Secretary to submit a certified and true copy of this Resolution to the Chief Appraiser of 

the Galveston Central Appraisal District before December 16, 2025. 
 

SECTION 4:  That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage and adoption. 
  



L:Res. 11-094 Cast Votes GCAD 

 
 

2 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of November 2023. 

 

  

      

                                                   _______________________________ 

Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor  

      City of Texas City, Texas 

 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

_______________________    ____________________________    

Rhomari D. Leigh     Kyle L. Dickson 

City Secretary                                    City Attorney 

  



L:Res 13-087-Cast Votes GCAD 
 

STATE OF TEXAS   § 

§  

COUNTY OF GALVESTON  § 

 

 

 

I, Nicholas J. Finan, Secretary of the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, 

do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a Resolution adopted by the City 

Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, at its Regular Called Meeting held on the 2nd day 

of October, 2013, as the same appears in the records of this office. 

 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I subscribe my name hereto officially under the corporate 

seal of the City of Texas City, Texas, this            day of                               , 2013. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                   

       Nicholas J. Finan, City Secretary 

City of Texas City, Texas 

 

 

 

 
 



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (7) (d)        
Meeting Date: 11/15/2023  
ABHR Engagement Letter for Legal Representation in Connection with Proposed Minto
Communities Development
Submitted For: Kim Golden, Transportation and Planning 
Submitted By: Veronica Carreon, Transportation and Planning
Department: Transportation and Planning

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Approve engagement of ABHR (a law firm) for review, representation and legal counsel
regarding formulation of a TIRZ (Tax Incriment Reinvestment Zone) for the Minto
Communities Texas, LLC project.  

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
Minto Communities Texas, LLC, is proposing a large planned unit development subdivision to
be located on approximately 1300 acres in Texas City which development plans will include
the formulation of one or more special districts, including but not limited to a Tax Increment
Reinvestment Zone (TIRZ). The City will need to perform due diligence including legal review
to evaluate the proposed development.  ABHR has expertise regarding planned unit
developments and the formulation of special districts, including specifically the TIRZ, and has
previously represented the City and provided similar services satisfactorily.  Minto
Communities has waived all conflicts and agreed to pay ABHR's fees for this legal
representation.  

RECOMMENDATION
Staff has reviewed and recommend approval of the engagement of ABHR for services relating
to the Mintos Communities Texas, LLC, proposed development. 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
ABHR Engagement Letter 
Resolution 

































RESOLUTION NO. 2023-128 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO APPROVE AN 

ENGAGEMENT OF ABHR (A LAW FIRM) FOR REVIEW, 

REPRESENTATION AND LEGAL COUNSEL REGARDING FORMULATION 

OF A TIRZ (TAX INCREMENT REINVESTMENT ZONE) FOR THE MINTO 

COMMUNITIES TEXAS, LLC PROJECT ; PROVIDING THAT THIS 

RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS 

PASSAGE AND ADOPTION. 

 

WHEREAS, Minto Communities Texas, LLC, is proposing a large, planned unit 

development subdivision to be located on approximately 1300 acres in Texas City; and 

WHEREAS, The development plans will include the formulation of one or more special 

districts, including but not limited to a Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone (TIRZ); and 

WHEREAS, The City will need to perform due diligence including legal review to evaluate 

the proposed development. ABHR has expertise regarding planned unit developments and the 

formulation of special districts, including specifically the TIRZ, and has previously represented the 

City and provided similar services satisfactorily. Minto Communities has waived all conflicts and 

agreed to pay ABHR's fees for this legal representation.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1:  That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, authorizes the 

Mayor to approve the engagement of ABHR (a law firm) for review, representation and legal 

counsel regarding formulation of a TIRZ (Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone) for the Minto 

Communities Texas, LLC in the form attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” and made a part hereof for 

all intents and purposes.   

SECTION 2:  That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage and adoption. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of November 2023. 

 

 

 

________________________ 

       Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 

       City of Texas City, Texas 

 

 

 



 2 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

________________________   _______________________       

Rhomari D. Leigh     Kyle L. Dickson 

City Secretary      City Attorney 

 

 

 



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (7) (e)        
Meeting Date: 11/15/2023  
Engineering Services For The City Of Texas City Water Line Replacement Project - Phase 21
Submitted For: Mike McKinley, Public Works  Submitted By: Mike McKinley, Public

Works
Department: Public Works

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Approve and execute and engineering agreement with ARKK Engineer, LLC., from Houston
Texas, for the Water Line Replacement Project - Phase 21.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
ARKK Engineers, LLC.has submitted an Agreement for Services for the engineering services
for the Water Line Replacement Project - Phase 21 totaling $213,175.00. This project is in the
2023-2024 Budget. A copy of the agreement is attached for your review.

RECOMMENDATION
It is the recommendation of the Public Works Department to approve a resolution authorizing
the Mayor to execute an Agreement for Services with ARKK Engineers, LLC.for the Water
Line Replacement Project - Phase 21 for the engineering services from the design phase
through all construction phases. It is further recommended that the Mayor be authorized to
execute change orders, not to exceed 25% of the total amount of the initial agreement, without
going before the Commission.

 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Exhibit A 
Resolution 



THE STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF GALVESTON 

AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 

This Agreement entered into as of the_ day of ______ , A.O., 2023, by and between ARKK 

Engineers, LLC ("Consultant"), and the City of Texas City, Texas, ("Client"). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the Client has requested various services of the Consultant with respect to Engineering Services for 

the City of Texas City's "Water Line Replacement Project- Phase 21 ("Project")". 

NOW, THEREFORE, Client and Consultant hereby agree as follows: 

1. Engagement of Consultant - Consultant hereby agrees to perform the services required under the

scope of work related to the Project, and to provide Client with copies of the information, opinions,

and other such documents made the basis of the scope of services, which is set out in Attachment "A"

and made a part of this contract. Consultant agrees to initiate the following services that are set out

in Attachment "A" upon receipt of an executed copy of this Agreement.

2. Availability of Information - Client agrees to provide Consultant with all available information

pertinent to the Project. Client will also provide copies of reports, drawings, and other data, and will,

at Consultant's request, provide written authorization to review Client's files relative to the Project

which may be in possession of third parties. Consultant agrees to return all original documents to

Client upon completion of the Project, but reserves the right to make and keep reproducible copies of

all such material.

3. Access to Facilities - Client will provide access for the Consultant to enter the property and facilities of

Client, as necessary for Consultant to perform services as required under the Project.

Page 1 of 3 



4. Instruments of Service - All documents prepared in accordance with this contract including exhibits,

field notes, laboratory data, original drawings, and specifications are the property of the Client. The

Consultant is given the right to use any of this data in connection with future engineering projects.

The Consultant may retain copies of reproducibles of any information prepared for this Project.

5. Fee - The Consultant's fee for the scope of services as stated in Attachment "A" provided by

Consultant under this Agreement as set out in Attachment "A" and being the amount of $213,175.00

for Design and Construction Phase Services.

6. Payment and Fee Schedule - The Consultant will submit a monthly invoice for services rendered.

7. Terms of Payment - Payment of fees as determined under Paragraph 5 herein above shall be due and

payable by Client within thirty (30) days following receipt of Consultant's monthly invoice.

8. Additional Services - Additional services beyond those described in the Scope of Services will be

invoiced on the basis of direct labor cost times a factor of 2.99 and direct cost plus 10%.

9. Insurance - Consultant shall maintain Worker's Compensation and Liability Insurance in accordance

with Attachment "B".

10. Termination - The Client may terminate this contract at any time by giving notice in writing to the

Consultant. In that case, all finished or unfinished documents and other materials produced under

this contract shall become the Client's property. If the contract is terminated by the Client in

accordance with this provision, Consultant shall be paid for all services performed to the date of

termination.

11. Governing Law - This Agreement shall be deemed to have been made under, and shall be construed

and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas. The venue of any suit for

enforcement or construction of this contract shall be in Galveston County, Texas.

12. Indemnification - For consideration received, the undersigned agrees to indemnify, save, defend,

and hold harmless the City of Texas City, Texas, its employees, officials, and agents from any and all

Page 2 of 3 



13. 

claims, actions, damages, lawsuits, proceedings, judgments, or liabilities, for personal injury, death 

or property damage resulting from the negligent acts or omissions of the undersigned or negligent 

acts or omissions of others under the undersigned's supervision or control arising out of the 

performance of this agreement. 

Home Rule Municipality 

The City is a municipality incorporated under the laws of the State of Texas, and all laws regulating 

and concerning Texas municipalities apply, including budgetary laws, The City Charter and The City 

Code. Consultant acknowledges that the City may only act through its City Commission or a duly 

authorized representative of City Commission, and that any act of an employee or officer of the City 

that is not duly authorized is void. 

ENTERED INTO AND AGREED by the parties hereto as the day and year first written. 

ATIEST: 

DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

ARKK ENGINEERS, LLC 

Consultant 

BY: 

MAOHU KILAMBI, P.E. 

Senior Project Manager/ Principal 

CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS 

Client 

BY: 

MAYOR OF THE CITY OF TEXAS CITY 

Page 3 of 3 



November 6, 2023 

Mr. Corbin Ballast 

Director of Utilities 

City of Texas City 

911 Highway 146 North 

Texas City, Texas 77590 

Re: Proposal for Engineering and Construction Phase Services for the City of Texas City's 

"Water Line Replacement Project - Phase 21". 

Dear Mr. Ballast: 

ARKK Engineers, LLC (ARKK) is pleased to submit this proposal for performing engineering 

services for the above referenced Phase of Texas City's Water Line Replacement and 

Rehabilitation Program. The proposal is based on our understanding of the project as discussed 

in our meetings and conversations with City staff. This phase consists of providing engineering 

design and construction phase services for the replacement of water lines at various locations 

throughout the City. For your convenience this proposal consists of General Overview, Scope of 

Services, and Fee. 

GENERAL OVERVIEW 

The City of Texas City's water distribution system includes 224 miles of pipe (does not include 

the new developments on Highway 3 and Lago Mar). Approximately 441,075 L.F. (83.5 miles) 

of water lines at various locations throughout the City have been replaced to date (including 

on-going Phase 20) as part of this Waterline Replacement Program and the 2001 Bond Program. 

Phase 20 of this Water Line Replacement Program is currently under construction and should 

be complete by July 2024. This Waterline Replacement Project - Phase 21 is a continuation of 

this program. The water lines selected for replacement have been identified and provided by 

City staff based on on-going maintenance efforts; deteriorated water lines; recommendations 

from a modeling study performed previously; problem lines, and may include lines not replaced 

as part of previous projects. 

The project budget allocated for the Water Line Replacement Project - Phase 21 is $1.6 million, 

which includes construction costs, engineering, construction phase services, and other costs. 

Based on preliminary cost estimates prepared by ARKK, approximately 14,900 L.F. of water lines 

can be replaced as part of this phase. The estimated construction cost to perform the work is 

approximately $1.39 million, which includes the water line replacement, service line 

Page 4 of 3 



replacement (to the right-of-way/easement line}, and associated work. Based on updated 

construction costs developed by ARKK during the design phase, ARKK may include design of 

additional areas that may be included as an add alternate to this bid package. This add 

alternate will be awarded by the City if competitive bids are received from the contractors and 

adequate budget is available. 

As performed previously, the design documents for the water line replacements will consist of 

specifications and schematic layout maps that will be utilized for the drawings portion of the 

construction documents (in lieu of obtaining detailed topographic surveys}. City of Texas City's 

GIS drawings will be utilized in the preparation of the schematic maps. ARKK staff will conduct 

site visits to the project areas and gather additional information to aid with the design and 

include pertinent information in the bid documents. If it is determined that more detailed 

information will be required for any of these project areas, then authorization to perform 

additional survey work will be obtained from the City and a separate proposal will be submitted 

to the City. To this end, a geotechnical investigation of the soil conditions in the water line 

areas will not be performed. Geotechnical data from the recently completed projects in the 

vicinity (if available} will be utilized to aid with the design. However, if it is determined that 

geotechnical investigation is necessary; ARKK will submit a separate proposal to the City. 

As requested by the City, ARKK will provide one (1) project site representative to observe the 

construction of both the proposed Water Line Replacement Project - Phase 21 and the Sanitary 

Sewer Rehabilitation Project - Phase 23 (construction should be occurring concurrently}. To 

facilitate utilizing one project site representative for both the projects, the water line 

replacement project and the sanitary sewer rehabilitation project will be designed and bid 

concurrently, and constructed under separate construction contracts. Due to multiple 

contractors performing construction activities, the site representative will not be present at 

multiple sites at the same time. The City of Texas City will provide additional City personnel for 

site support to aid in observing the work. The estimated construction duration for the water 

line replacement project is 240 calendar days. ARKK's project representative will observe the 

construction on both the projects that should be occurring simultaneously; the project site 

representation budget will be affected if construction on both the projects does not occur 

concurrently. ARKK will coordinate with the City for additional services if this should occur. 

This proposal addresses the engineering services ARKK will provide the City during the Design 

and Construction Phases, as well as other services necessary to support the project. The 

proposal is separated into Basic Services and Special Services. 

Page 2 of 9 

7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040 • Houston, TX 77074 • (713) 400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com • TX PE Firm No. 13872 



SCOPE OF SERVICES 

I. DESIGN PHASE SERVICES

A. Basic Services - Design Phase

• Obtain private and public utility information, where appropriate.

• Perform field reconnaissance of the water line locations areas to obtain

information on surface features and other information that would impact

construction. The information gathered from the field visit will be included in

the schematic layout drawings that would aid the design efforts. A detailed

topographic survey of all project areas is not part of this scope.

• Meet with City to discuss and finalize design criteria and acquire pertinent

information regarding the Project.

• Coordinate with the City during the design phase.

• The design shall include the water lines identified by the City that can be

replaced with the available construction budget. ARKK will update the City of

Texas City of the cost estimate as the project progresses.

• Prepare project specifications, bid documents, and construction drawings based

on anticipated improvements.

• Coordinate with the City of Texas City during the design phase. Provide draft

sets of plans and specifications for review and comments.

• Coordinate with Texas Department of Transportation for improvements

performed in their right-of-way areas and apply for approval for utility

improvements within their right-of-way.

• Furnish documentation to TxDOT for their review and the issuance of a permit.

The construction contractor will then submit pertinent documentation during

the construction phase and obtain final approval to proceed with construction.

• Coordinate with other governmental entities, which may be impacted by the

project.

Page 3 of 9 

7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040 • Houston, TX 77074 • (713) 400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com • TX PE Firm No. 13872 



• Incorporate appropriate comments from pertinent entities into the final bid

documents.

• Prepare a final cost estimate for the project.

• Furnish two (2) sets of construction documents to the City.

B. Special Services - Design Phase

1. Reproduction

• Costs for reproduction i.e., reproduction of plans, specifications will be invoiced

under this item.

• Reproduction for review sets, submittals to the City, governmental agencies, and

utility companies will be included in the cost for reproduction.

2. Miscellaneous Services

• Due to the nature of work, it is recommended that a budget for miscellaneous

services be allocated. This item will not be utilized unless approved by the City of

Texas City.

II. BID PHASE SERVICES

• Assist the City in obtaining bids for the project. The City will advertise the project and

will absorb all related advertising costs. ARKK will assist the City in developing the

wording of the advertisement.

• Dispense construction documents via the Civcast online plan room (by Amtek USA) to

prospective bidders.

• During the bidding phase, provide information to and answer questions from

prospective bidders regarding the Project's construction documents.

• Prepare project addendums as necessary.

• Conduct a pre-bid conference for prospective bidders.

Page 4 of 9 

7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040 • Houston, TX 77074 • (713) 400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com • TX PE Firm No. 13872 



• Evaluate the bids and the qualifications of the apparent low bidder and advise the City

as to the acceptability of the apparent low bidder.

Ill. CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 

A. Basic Services - Construction Administration Phase

• Prepare four sets of contracts for execution by the successful bidder.

• Review and submit the contract documents to City for execution.

• Prepare an agenda for the pre-construction conference.

• Conduct a pre-construction conference for the project.

• Act as the City's Project representative during the construction phase.

• Review and respond accordingly to all submittals as required by the contract

specifications.

• Prepare change orders necessitated by field conditions.

• Review the contractor's pay estimates, evaluate the completion of work and make

payment recommendations to the City.

• Visit the site at intervals appropriate to the various stages of construction to observe the

progress and quality of executed work and to determine in general if such work is

proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents.

• ARKK will not be responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences or

procedures of construction selected by the Contractor(s) or the safety precautions and

programs incident to the work of the Contractor(s). ARKK's effort will be directed

toward providing a greater degree of confidence for the City that the completed work of

Contractor(s) will conform to the Contract Documents, but ARKK will not be responsible

for the failure of Contractor(s) to perform the work in accordance with the Contract

Documents. During site visits and on the basis of on-site observations ARKK shall keep

the City informed of the progress of the work, shall endeavor to guard the City against

defects and deficiencies in such work and may disapprove or reject work failing to

conform to the Contract Documents.

Page 5 of 9 

7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040 • Houston, TX 77074 • (713) 400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com • TX PE Firm No. 13872 



• Conduct a final inspection of the Project and make a recommendation for Final Payment

on the project.

• Engineer shall provide one set of reproducible record plans based on the Contractor's

red line marked up as-built drawings.

B. Special Services - Construction Phase

1. Construction Observation Services:

• Provide a site representative to observe the daily progress of construction activities and

to assist in the interpretation of plans and specifications. ARKK personnel will

coordinate with the City and the Construction Contractor regarding the construction

activities. The anticipated construction contract duration for the project is estimated to

be 210 calendar days. The construction observation budget is based on providing a

project site representative an average of 20 hours/week for 210 calendar days (in

conjunction with the Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project - Phase 23).

• Provide engineering and technical office personnel support throughout construction.

These office personnel, consisting of Professional Engineers and design staff, provide

on-site support to address contractor's questions, resident's concerns and conflicts

uncovered in the field.

• The site representative(s) will be on site daily during construction activity.

• In the event of rain days where construction may be hindered or stopped, the

representative will be on-site long enough to verify that inclement weather has

occurred and the associated impact on the contractor and construction.

• The site representative shall maintain daily reports in a format satisfactory to the City of

Texas City.

• The site representative will attend meetings with the Contractor and the City of Texas

City such as pre-construction conference, progress meetings, and other project related

meetings where his presence is requested by the City of Texas City.

• The site representative will take periodic photographs of the construction progress and

of key items of concern.

Page 6 of 9 

7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040 • Houston, TX 77074 • (713) 400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com • TX PE Firm No. 13872 



• The site representative will estimate quantities installed for use in reviewing monthly

pay estimates.

• The site representative will aid in the coordination of activities of the testing laboratory.

• The site representative will coordinate with the City of Texas City and the Contractor for

construction scheduling, resident notification and complaints.

• The site representative will assist in the performance of a final inspection, the

preparation of a punch list and subsequent follow up inspections.

• The site representative will be provided in an effort to aid in the process of observing

performance of work of the Contractor(s). Through more extensive on-site observations

of the work in progress, ARKK shall endeavor to provide further protection for the City

of Texas City against defects and deficiencies in the work of the contractor(s); but the

furnishing of such on-site representative will not make ARKK responsible for

construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures or safety

precautions or programs, or for Contractor(s) failure to perform their work in

accordance with the Contract Documents.

• The site representative will assemble and maintain notes, comments, sketches, and

supporting data related to the project in order to assist in the preparation of record

drawings.

• ARKK will process daily reports and other administrative office duties.

• ARKK will track and document costs associated with the work.

2. Construction Materials Testing

• Construction materials' testing is included in this proposal as a budgetary item. It is

anticipated that a separate construction testing firm mutually agreeable to the City of

Texas City (City) and ARKK will be utilized as a subcontractor to ARKK to perform the

testing services. The City has the option to contract directly with the materials testing

firm.

Page 7 of 9 

7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040 • Houston, TX 77074 • (713) 400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com • TX PE Firm No. 13872 



FEE 

The fees for the services are as follows: 

Design Phase: Lump Sum Amount of: 

Reproduction Budget: Lump Sum Amount of: 

Miscellaneous Services: Hourly and cost plus 10%: 

Bid Phase Services: Lump Sum Amount of: 

Construction Administration Services: Lump Sum Amount of: 

*Construction Materials Testing Budget: Cost plus 10%:

*Construction Observation Services: Hourly and cost plus 10%:

Total All Services 

$99,750.00 

$ 950.00 

$5,000.00 

$3,250.00 

$27,475.00 

$4,000.00 

$72,750.00 

$213,175.00 

* At this time the magnitude of these tasks are not known. Therefore, budgetary amounts are provided.

These figures may increase or decrease based on the actual work required. If an increase is necessary, it can
be accomplished by utilizing available funds from other line items that have underrun, or by contract
amendment.

The construction observation budget fee includes hourly costs for an on-site representative, 

and vehicle charge of $40/day. Hourly charges for on-site field representative shall be charged 

based on a raw labor rate times a multiplier of 2.70. Reimbursable expenses will be charged at 

cost plus 10%. 

ARKK Engineers, LLC appreciates the opportunity to submit this proposal and we look forward 

to continuing working with the City of Texas City on this very important project. 

Sincerely, 

ARKK ENGINEERS, LLC 

��� 
Madhu Kilambi, P.E. 

Senior Project Manager / Principal 

cc: Mr. Jack Haralson - City of Texas City 

Page 8 of 9 

7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040 • Houston, TX 77074 • (713) 400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com • TX PE Firm No. 13872 

mmckinley
Highlight

mmckinley
Highlight



ATTACHMENT "B" 

INSURANCE LIMITS 

1. General Liability Each Occurrence: $1,000,000 

Damage to Rented Premises $1,000,000 

Medical Expenses (any one person) $10,000 

Personal and Adv. Injury $1,000,000 

General Aggregate: $2,000,000 

Products - Comp/Op Agg: $2,000,000 

2. Automobile Liability Combined Single Limit: $1,000,000 

3. Excess Liability Umbrella Form Each Occurrence: $1,000,000 

Aggregate: $1,000,000 

4. Worker's Compensation and

Employers Liability Each Accident: $500,000 

Disease - Each Employee: $500,000 

Disease - Policy Limit: $500,000 

5. Professional Liability Each Claim $1,000,000 

Policy Year Aggregate $1,000,000 

Page 9 of 9 

7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040 • Houston, TX 77074 • (713) 400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com • TX PE Firm No. 13872 



  

  RESOLUTION NO. 2023-128 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO 

ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES WITH ARKK 

ENGINEERS LLC, FOR THE CITY OF TEXAS CITY’S WATER LINE 

REPLACEMENT PROJECT-PHASE 21; AND PROVIDING THAT THIS 

RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS 

PASSAGE AND ADOPTION.  

 

WHEREAS, the Public Works Department is requesting approval of an agreement with 

ARKK Engineers, LLC, for the City of Texas City’s Water Line Replacement Project – Phase 21; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, ARKK Engineers, LLC, has submitted a proposal and agreement for services to 

provide engineering services for the Water Line Replacement Project – Phase 21, as set out on 

Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and made a part hereof for all intents and purposes; and 

 

WHEREAS, the total cost, as set out in the attached proposal, is $213,175.00, and funds are 

available in the City’s 2023/2024 budget. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS: 

 

SECTION 1: That the City Commission hereby accepts the proposal by ARKK Engineers, 

LLC, for the Texas City’s Water Line Replacement Project – Phase 21. 

 

 SECTION 2:  That the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the Agreement for Services 

with ARKK Engineers, LLC, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” and made a part hereof for 

all intents and purposes, and the Mayor is authorized to execute change orders, not to exceed 25% of 

the total amount of the initial agreement, without going before the Commission. 

 

 SECTION 3: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 

and adoption. 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of November 2023. 

 

 

                                                                       

_______________________________ 

Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor  

      City of Texas City, Texas 

 

 



 2 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

_______________________    ____________________________    

Rhomari D. Leigh     Kyle L. Dickson 

City Secretary                                              City Attorney   

 



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (7) (f)        
Meeting Date: 11/15/2023  
Engineering Services For The City Of Texas City Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project -
Phase 23
Submitted For: Mike McKinley, Public Works  Submitted By: Mike McKinley, Public

Works
Department: Public Works

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Approve the execution of an Engineering Service Agreement with ARKK Engineers, LLC.,
from Houston Texas, for the Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project - Phase 23.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
ARKK Engineers, LLC.has submitted an Agreement for Services, for the Sanitary Sewer
Rehabilitation Project - Phase 23, for the total sum of $232,590.00. This includes, design
phase, bid phase, construction administration services, construction materials testing,
construction observation, and construction evaluation services. Funds for this project are
made available in the 2023 / 2024 City of Texas City Budget. A copy of this agreement is
attached for your review.

RECOMMENDATION
It is the recommendation of the Public Works Department to approve a resolution authorizing
the Mayor to execute the Agreement for Services with ARKK Engineers, LLC.on behalf of the
City Commission, for the Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project - Phase 23. It is further
recommended that the Mayor be authorized to approve any change orders, not to exceed
25% of the total amount, without taking the matter before Commission. 

 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Exhibit A 
Resolution 



THE STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF GALVESTON 

AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 

This Agreement entered into as of the_ day of ______ , A.O., 2023, by and between ARKK 

Engineers, LLC ("Consultant"), and the City of Texas City, Texas, ("Client"). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the Client has requested various services of the Consultant with respect to Engineering Services for 

the City of Texas City's "Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project - Phase 23 ("Project")". 

NOW, THEREFORE, Client and Consultant hereby agree as follows: 

1. Engagement of Consultant - Consultant hereby agrees to perform the services required under the

scope of work related to the Project, and to provide Client with copies of the information, opinions,

and other such documents made the basis of the scope of services, which is set out in Attachment "A"

and made a part of this contract. Consultant agrees to initiate the following services that are set out

in Attachment "A" upon receipt of an executed copy of this Agreement.

2. Availability of Information - Client agrees to provide Consultant with all available information

pertinent to the Project. Client will also provide copies of reports, drawings, and other data, and will,

at Consultant's request, provide written authorization to review Client's files relative to the Project

which may be in possession of third parties. Consultant agrees to return all original documents to

Client upon completion of the Project, but reserves the right to make and keep reproducible copies of

all such material.

3. Access to Facilities - Client will provide access for the Consultant to enter the property and facilities of

Client, as necessary for Consultant to perform services as required under the Project.

Page 1 of 3 



4. Instruments of Service - All documents prepared in accordance with this contract including exhibits,

field notes, laboratory data, original drawings, and specifications are the property of the Client. The

Consultant is given the right to use any of this data in connection with future engineering projects.

The Consultant may retain copies of reproducibles of any information prepared for this Project.

5. Fee - The Consultant's fee for the scope of services as stated in Attachment "A" provided by

Consultant under this Agreement as set out in Attachment "A" and being the amount of $232,590 for

Design and Construction Phase Services.

6. Payment and Fee Schedule - The Consultant will submit a monthly invoice for services rendered.

7. Terms of Payment - Payment of fees as determined under Paragraph 5 herein above shall be due and

payable by Client within thirty (30) days following receipt of Consultant's monthly invoice.

8. Additional Services - Additional services beyond those described in the Scope of Services will be

invoiced on the basis of direct labor cost times a factor of 2.99 and direct cost plus 10%.

9. Insurance - Consultant shall maintain Worker's Compensation and Liability Insurance in accordance

with Attachment "B".

10. Termination - The Client may terminate this contract at any time by giving notice in writing to the

Consultant. In that case, all finished or unfinished documents and other materials produced under

this contract shall become the Client's property. If the contract is terminated by the Client in

accordance with this provision, Consultant shall be paid for all services performed to the date of

termination.

11. Governing Law - This Agreement shall be deemed to have been made under, and shall be construed

and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas. The venue of any suit for

enforcement or construction of this contract shall be in Galveston County, Texas.

12. Indemnification - For consideration received, the undersigned agrees to indemnify, save, defend and

hold harmless the City of Texas City, Texas, its employees, officials, and agents from any and all

Page 2 of 3 



13. 

claims, actions, damages, lawsuits, proceedings, judgments, or liabilities, for personal injury, death or 

property damage resulting from the negligent acts or omissions of the undersigned or negligent acts 

or omissions of others under the undersigned's supervision or control arising out of the performance 

of this agreement. 

Home Rule Municipality 

The City is a municipality incorporated under the laws of the State of Texas, and all laws regulating 

and concerning Texas municipalities apply, including budgetary laws, The City Charter and The City 

Code. Consultant acknowledges that the City may only act through its City Commission or a duly 

authorized representative of City Commission, and that any act of an employee or officer of the City 

that is not duly authorized is void. 

ENTERED INTO AND AGREED by the parties hereto as the day and year first written. 

ATIEST: 

DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

ARKK ENGINEERS, LLC 

Consultant 

BY: 

MAOHU KILAMBI, P.E. 

Senior Project Manager/ Principal 

CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS 

Client 

BY: 

MAYOR OF THE CITY OF TEXAS CITY 

Page 3 of 3 



� 

t-RKKENGINEERS 

November 6, 2023 

Mr. Corbin Ballast 

Director of Utilities 

City of Texas City 

911 Highway 146 North 

Texas City, Texas 77590 

ATTACHMENT "A" 

Re: Proposal for Engineering and Construction Phase Services for the City of Texas City's 

"Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project - Phase 23". 

Dear Mr. Ballast: 

As requested, ARKK Engineers, LLC (ARKK) is pleased to submit this proposal for performing 

engineering services for the above referenced Phase of Texas City's Sanitary Sewer 

Rehabilitation Program. The proposal is based on our understanding of the project as discussed 

with City staff. This phase consists of providing engineering design services and the preparation 

of bid documents for the rehabilitation of sanitary sewer lines at various locations throughout 

the City, and for providing construction phase services. For your convenience this proposal 

consists of General Overview, Scope of Services, and Fee. 

GENERAL OVERVIEW 

The Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project - Phase 23 project is a continuation of an ongoing 

program underway in the City of Texas City (City). Phase 22 of this Sanitary Sewer 

Rehabilitation Program is currently under construction. Approximately 533,460 L.F. of sanitary 

sewer lines (approximately 101 miles) at various locations throughout the City have been 

rehabilitated or replaced to date as part of this program (including on-going Phase 22 Project 

that is currently under construction). 

This proposal includes providing engineering design and construction phase services for the 

rehabilitation of existing sanitary sewers at various locations throughout the City. The sanitary 

sewers identified for rehabilitation will be identified and provided by City staff based on on

going maintenance efforts; known deteriorated sewer lines; rehabilitation of selected sanitary 

sewer lines identified from the SSES Study (City's SSO Initiative Agreement); problem lines, and 

lines not replaced as part of previous projects. 

Page 1 of 9 

7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040 • Houston, TX 77074 • (713) 400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com • TX PE Firm No. 13872 



The project budget allocated for the Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Phase 23 Project is $1.S 

million, which includes construction costs, engineering, construction phase services and other 

costs. 

Based on a preliminary cost estimate prepared by ARKK, it is estimated that approximately 

18,100 L.F. of 6" through 18" sanitary sewers can be rehabilitated as part of this phase. The 

estimated construction cost to perform this work is approximately $1.265 million which 

includes the sanitary line rehabilitation, manhole rehabilitation, service line replacement (to the 

right of way), and associated work. Based on updated construction costs developed by ARKK 

during the design phase, ARKK may add or delete rehabilitation design of sanitary sewer lines. 

Addition of sanitary sewer lines will be accomplished by including an add alternate to this bid 

package. This add alternate will only be added to the project if competitive bids are received 

from rehabilitation contractors and adequate budget is available. 

As performed previously, the design documents for the sanitary sewer rehabilitation project 

will consist of schematic drawings and specifications with bid items. Schematic layout maps will 

be prepared and utilized for the drawings portion of the construction documents in lieu of 

obtaining detailed topographic surveys. City of Texas City's GIS drawings will be utilized in the 

preparation of the schematic maps. ARKK staff will conduct site visits to accessible areas and 

gather additional information to aid with the design and include pertinent information in the 

bid documents. 

It is City's desire that ARKK provide one (1) project site representative to observe the 

construction of both the Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project - Phase 23 and the proposed 

Water Line Replacement Project - Phase 21. As discussed with City staff, the water line 

replacement project and the sanitary sewer rehabilitation project will be designed and bid 

concurrently, and constructed under separate construction contracts during the same time 

frame. This will allow utilizing one project site representative for both projects. Due to 

multiple contractors performing construction activities, the site representative cannot be 

present at various sites at the same time. The City of Texas City will provide additional City 

personnel for site support to aid in observing the work. The estimated construction duration 

for the Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project - Phase 23 is 210 calendar days. ARKK's project 

representative will observe the construction on both the projects that should be occurring 

simultaneously; the project site representation budget will be affected if constructions on both 

the projects do not occur concurrently. ARKK will coordinate with the City for additional 

services if this should occur. 

This proposal addresses the engineering services ARKK will provide the City during the Design 

and Construction Phases, and other services necessary to support the project. The proposal is 

separated into Basic Services and Special Services. Geotechnical investigation will not be 

performed for this project. Geotechnical data from the recently completed projects in the 

vicinity (if available) will be utilized to aid with the design. However, if it is determined that 

geotechnical investigation is necessary; ARKK will submit a separate proposal to the City. 

Page 2 of 9 

7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040 • Houston, TX 77074 • (713) 400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com • TX PE Firm No. 13872 



SCOPE OF SERVICES 

I. DESIGN PHASE

A. Design Services

• Obtain utility information on the sanitary sewer lines designated for rehabilitation.

• Obtain any available record drawings on sanitary sewer lines designated for

rehabilitation from the City.

• Meet with City Staff to discuss and finalize sanitary sewer segments and obtain

additional information on maintenance issues.

• Perform field visits of the sanitary sewer line locations to gather information on

surface features and other information that would aid with the design. Information

gathered from the field visit may be used to aid with the design efforts and if

required, will be included on the schematic layout drawings. Topographic survey of

the project areas is not part of this scope and will not be performed for this project.

• Perform general manhole inspections on the sewer lines designated for

rehabilitation. These inspections will be for general deterioration and condition

purposes.

• Review and evaluate manhole inspection data gathered from the field visits and

recommend suitable rehabilitation methods. Manholes that cannot be accessed

during the design phase will either be uncovered by City personnel during the design

phase or by the construction contractor during the construction phase.

• Coordinate with the City during the design phase.

• The design shall include the sanitary sewers identified by the City that can be

rehabilitated with the available construction budget. ARKK will endeavor to update

the City of Texas City of the cost estimate as the project progresses.

• Prepare project specifications, bid documents, and construction drawings based on

anticipated improvements.

• Coordinate with the City of Texas City during the design phase. Provide draft sets of

plans and specifications for review and comments.

• Coordinate with Texas Department of Transportation for improvements performed

in their right-of-way areas and apply for approval for utility improvements within

their right-of-way.

Page 3 of 9 

7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040 • Houston, TX 77074 • (713) 400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com • TX PE Firm No. 13872 



• Furnish documentation to TxDOT for their review and the issuance of a permit. The

construction contractor will then submit pertinent documentation during the

construction phase and obtain final approval to proceed with construction.

• Incorporate appropriate comments from the City into the final bid documents.

• Coordinate and submit plan drawings to the utility companies for review and

comments.

• Incorporate comments into the bid documents.

• Coordinate with Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) during the

design phase. Furnish necessary documentation to TCEQ for their review.

• Prepare final cost estimate for the project.

• Furnish two (2) sets of plans and specifications for each construction package to the

City.

8. Special Services -Design Phase

1. Reproduction

• Costs for reproduction i.e., reproduction of plans, specifications will be invoiced

under this item.

• Reproduction for review sets, submittals to the City, governmental agencies, and

utility companies will be included in the cost for reproduction.

2. Miscellaneous Services

• Due to the nature of work, it is recommended that a budget for miscellaneous

services be allocated. This item will not be utilized unless approved by the City of

Texas City.

II. BID PHASE SERVICES

• Assist the City in obtaining bids for the project. The City of Texas City will arrange for

the newspaper advertisement and will absorb the related advertising costs charged by

the local newspaper. ARKK will assist the City in developing the wording of the

advertisement.

Page 4 of 9 

7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040 • Houston, TX 77074 • (713) 400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com • TX PE Firm No. 13872 



• Dispense construction documents via the Civcast online plan room (by Amtek USA) to

prospective bidders.

• During the bidding phase, provide information to and answer questions from

prospective bidders regarding the Project's construction documents.

• Prepare agenda for the pre-bid meeting.

• Conduct a pre-bid conference for prospective bidders.

• Prepare project addendums as necessary.

• Evaluate the bids and the qualifications of the apparent low bidder and advise the City

as to the acceptability of the apparent low bidder.

• Prepare an engineering letter of recommendation for City Commission award of the

construction contract.

Ill. CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 

A. Basic Services - Construction Administration Services:

• Prepare four sets of contracts for execution by the successful bidder.

• Review and submit the contract documents to City for execution.

• Prepare an agenda for the pre-construction conference.

• Conduct a pre-construction conference for the project.

• Act as the City's Project representative during the construction phase.

• Review and respond accordingly to all submittals as required by the contract

specifications.

• Prepare change orders as necessitated by field conditions.

• Review the contractor's pay estimates, evaluate the completion of work and

make payment recommendations to the City.

• Visit the site at intervals appropriate to the various stages of construction to

observe the progress and quality of executed work and to determine in general if

Page 5 of 9 

7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040 • Houston, TX 77074 • (713) 400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com • TX PE Firm No. 13872 



such work is proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents. Part time 

site representation is not included in this scope. 

• ARKK will not be responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences or

procedures of construction selected by the Contractor(s) or the safety

precautions and programs incident to the work of the Contractor(s). ARKK's

effort will be directed toward providing a greater degree of confidence for the

City that the completed work of Contractor(s) will conform to the Contract

Documents, but ARKK will not be responsible for the failure of Contractor(s) to

perform the work in accordance with the Contract Documents. During site visits

and on the basis of on-site observations ARKK shall keep the City informed of the

progress of the work, shall endeavor to guard the City against defects and

deficiencies in such work and may disapprove or reject work failing to conform

to the Contract Documents.

• Conduct a final inspection of the Project and make a recommendation for Final

Payment on the project.

• Engineer shall provide a record drawing set based on Contractor's provided red

line marked up as-built drawings.

8. Special Services - Construction Phase

1. Construction Evaluation Services

• Review pre-rehabilitation television inspection data provided by the construction

Contractor and verify the method of rehabilitation. Approximately 18,100 L.F. of

sanitary sewer pipe video data will be reviewed as part of this project. The

actual footage of lines that will be reviewed will not be known until the

completion of the pre-television inspection efforts by the construction

contractor.

• Provide documentation of the review and coordinate with the Contractor during

construction. Evaluation of the pre-rehabilitation television inspection provides

the City access to the Contractor's pre-construction video inspection data and

provides the City the ability to verify the rehabilitation prior to the construction

contractor performing the work.

• Coordinate the rehabilitation efforts with the construction Contractor.

Page 6 of 9 

7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040 • Houston, TX 77074 • (713) 400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com • TX PE Firm No. 13872 



• Review post-rehabilitation television inspection data of approximately 18,100

L.F. of sanitary sewer pipe. Evaluation of post construction inspection video data

provides a good measure of quality control.

• Coordinate the findings of the post-rehabilitation television inspection data

review efforts with the City.

2. Construction Observation Services

• Provide one construction observer (site representative) to observe the daily

progress of construction activities and to assist in the interpretation of plans and

specifications. This proposal is based on the Construction Inspector being on-site

an average of 20 hours per week during the duration of active construction.

ARKK personnel will coordinate with the City and the Construction Contractor

regarding the construction activities.

• Provide engineering and technical office personnel support throughout

construction. These office personnel, consisting of Professional Engineers and

design staff, provide on-site support to address contractor's questions, resident's

concerns and conflicts uncovered in the field.

• In the event of rain days where construction may be hindered or stopped, the

representative will be on-site long enough to verify that inclement weather has

occurred and the associated impact on the contractor and construction.

• The site representative shall maintain daily reports in a format satisfactory to the

City of Texas City.

• The site representative will attend meetings with the Contractor and the City of

Texas City such as pre-construction conference, progress meetings, and other

project related meetings where his presence is requested by the City of Texas

City.

• The site representative will take periodic photographs of the construction

progress and of key items of concern.

• The on-site representative will estimate quantities installed for use in reviewing

monthly pay estimates.

• The on-site representative will aid in the coordination of activities of the testing

laboratory.

Page 7 of 9 

7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040 • Houston, TX 77074 • (713) 400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com • TX PE Firm No. 13872 



• The on-site representative will coordinate with the City of Texas City and the

Contractor for construction scheduling, resident notification and complaints.

• The on-site representative will assist in the performance of a final inspection, the

preparation of a punch list and subsequent follow up inspections.

• The on-site representative will be provided in an effort to aid in the process of

observing performance of work of the Contractor(s). Through more extensive

on-site observations of the work in progress, ARKK shall endeavor to provide

further protection for the City of Texas City against defects and deficiencies in

the work of the contractor(s); but the furnishing of such on-site representative

will not make ARKK responsible for construction means, methods, techniques,

sequences or procedures or safety precautions or programs, or for Contractor(s)

failure to perform their work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

• The on-site representative will assemble and maintain notes, comments,

sketches, and supporting data related to the project in order to assist in the

preparation of record drawings.

• The on-site representative will review the Contractor's quantity measurements,

the Contractor's payment request and make recommendation of payment of the

periodic pay request to ARKK's project manager.

• ARKK will process daily reports and other administrative office duties.

• ARKK will track and document costs associated with the work.

3. Construction Materials Testing

• Construction materials testing is included in this proposal as a budgetary item. It

is anticipated that a separate construction testing firm mutually agreeable to the

City of Texas City (City) and ARKK will be utilized as a subcontractor to ARKK to

perform the testing services. The City has the option to contract directly with

the materials testing firm.

Page 8 of 9 

7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040 • Houston, TX 77074 • (713) 400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com • TX PE Firm No. 13872 



FEE 

The fees for the services are as follows: 

Design Services: Lump Sum amount of: 

Reproduction: lump sum amount of: 

Bid Phase: lump sum amount of: 

Miscellaneous Services: Hourly and cost plus 10%: 

Construction Administration Services: lump sum amount of: 

*Construction Materials Testing Budget: Cost plus 10%:

*Construction Observation: Hourly and cost plus 10%:

Construction Evaluation Services: lump sum amount of:

Total Fee 

$94,615.00 

$950.00 

$3,250.00 

$5,000.00 

$ 23,650.00 

$ 4,000.00 

$72,750.00 

$28,375.00 

$232,590.00 

The anticipated construction contract duration for the project is estimated to be 210 calendar 

days. The construction observation budget is based on providing a project site representative 

an average of 20 hours/week for 210 calendar days (in conjunction with the Water Line 

Replacement Phase 21 Project). The fee includes hourly costs for a project site representative, 

and vehicle charge of $40/day. Hourly charges for on-site field representative shall be charged 

based on a raw labor rate times a multiplier of 2.70. Reimbursable expenses will be charged at 

cost plus 10%. 

ARKK Engineers, LLC appreciates the opportunity to submit this proposal and we look forward 

to working with the City of Texas City on this very important project. 

Sincerely, 

ARKK ENGINEERS, LLC 

��� 
Madhu Kilambi, P.E. 

Senior Project Manager / Principal 

cc: Mr. Jack Haralson - City of Texas City 

Page 9 of 9 

7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040 • Houston, TX 77074 • (713) 400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com • TX PE Firm No. 13872 

mmckinley
Highlight

mmckinley
Highlight



ATTACHMENT "B" 

INSURANCE LIMITS 

1. General Liability Each Occurrence: $1,000,000 

Damage to Rented Premises $1,000,000 

Medical Expenses (any one person) $10,000 

Personal and Adv. Injury $1,000,000 

General Aggregate: $2,000,000 

Products - Comp/Op Agg: $2,000,000 

2. Automobile Liability Combined Single Limit: $1,000,000 

3. Excess Liability Umbrella Form Each Occurrence: $1,000,000 

Aggregate: $1,000,000 

4. Worker's Compensation and

Employers Liability Each Accident: $500,000 

Disease - Each Employee: $500,000 

Disease - Policy Limit: $500,000 

5. Professional Liability Each Claim $1,000,000 

Policy Year Aggregate $1,000,000 

7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040 • Houston, TX 77074 • (713) 400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com • TX PE Firm No. 13872 



  

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-130 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO 

ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES WITH ARKK 

ENGINEERS LLC, FOR THE CITY OF TEXAS CITY’S WATER LINE 

REPLACEMENT PROJECT-PHASE 23; AND PROVIDING THAT THIS 

RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS 

PASSAGE AND ADOPTION.  

 

WHEREAS, the Public Works Department is requesting approval of an agreement with 

ARKK Engineers, LLC,, for the City of Texas City’s Water Line Replacement Project – Phase 23; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, ARKK Engineers, LLC, has submitted a proposal and agreement for services to 

provide engineering services for the Water Line Replacement Project – Phase 23, as set out on 

Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and made a part hereof for all intents and purposes; and 

 

WHEREAS, the total cost, as set out on the attached proposal, is $232,590.00, and fund are 

available in the City’s 2023/2024 budget. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS: 

 

SECTION 1: That the City Commission hereby accepts the proposal by ARKK Engineers, 

LLC, for the Texas City’s Water Line Replacement Project – Phase 23. 

 

 SECTION 2:  That the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the Agreement for Services 

with ARKK Engineers, LLC, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” and made a part hereof for 

all intents and purposes, and that the Mayor be authorized to approve any change orders, not to 

exceed 25% of the total amount, without taking the matter before Commission. 

 

 SECTION 3: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 

and adoption. 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of November 2023. 

 

 

                                                                       

_______________________________ 

Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor  

      City of Texas City, Texas 

 

 



----------------------------------------------------------- 

L:Res.12-097 ARKK Engineers 

Inner Levee Certification – Phase 1 

2 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

_______________________    ____________________________    

Rhomari D. Leigh     Kyle L. Dickson 

City Secretary                                              City Attorney   

 



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (7) (g)        
Meeting Date: 11/15/2023  
Engineering Services for the Lift Stations No. 7 and 15 Rehabilitation Project
Submitted For: Mike McKinley, Public Works  Submitted By: Mike McKinley, Public

Works
Department: Public Works

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Approve the execution of an engineering agreement with ARKK Engineers, LLC., from
Houston, Texas, for the Lift Stations 7 and 15 Rehabilitation Project.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
ARKK Engineers, LLC. has submitted an Agreement For Services, for the engineering
services necessary for the Lift Stations No.7 and 15 Rehabilitation Project, not to exceed
$172,175.00. Funds are made available for this project in the City of Texas City 2023/2024
Annual Budget. A copy of this agreement is attached for your review.

RECOMMENDATION
It is the recommendation of the Public Works Department that the City Commission approve a
resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute the Agreement For Services with ARKK
Engineers, LLC. on behalf of the City Commission for the Lift Stations No. 7 and 15
Rehabilitation Project. It is further recommended that the Mayor be authorized to execute
change orders, not to exceed 25% of the total amount of the initial agreement, without going
before the Commission.

 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Exhibit A 
Resolution 



THE STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF GALVESTON 

AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 

This Agreement entered into as of the_ day of ______ , A.O., 2023, by and between ARKK 

Engineers, LLC ("Consultant"), and the City of Texas City, Texas, ("Client"). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the Client has requested various services of the Consultant with respect to Engineering Services for 

the City of Texas City's "Lift Station No. 7 and 15 Rehabilitation Project ("Project")". 

NOW, THEREFORE, Client and Consultant hereby agree as follows: 

1. Engagement of Consultant- Consultant hereby agrees to perform the services required under the scope

of work related to the Project, and to provide Client with copies of the information, opinions, and other

such documents made the basis of the scope of services, which is set out in Attachment "A" and made

a part of this contract. Consultant agrees to initiate the following services that are set out in Attachment

"A" upon receipt of an executed copy of this Agreement.

2. Availability of Information - Client agrees to provide Consultant with all available information pertinent

to the Project. Client will also provide copies of reports, drawings, and other data, and will, at

Consultant's request, provide written authorization to review Client's files relative to the Project which

may be in possession of third parties. Consultant agrees to return all original documents to Client upon

completion of the Project, but reserves the right to make and keep reproducible copies of all such

material.

3. Access to Facilities - Client will provide access for the Consultant to enter the property and facilities of

Client, as necessary for Consultant to perform services as required under the Project.

4. Instruments of Service - All documents prepared in accordance with this contract including exhibits,

field notes, laboratory data, original drawings, and specifications are the property of the Client. The

Page 1 of 3 



Consultant is given the right to use any of this data in connection with future engineering projects. The 

Consultant may retain copies of reproducibles of any information prepared for this Project. 

5. Fee -The Consultant's fee for the scope of services as stated in Attachment "A" provided by Consultant

under this Agreement as set out in Attachment "A" and being the amount of: $172,175 for Design

Services and Construction Phase Services.

6. Payment and Fee Schedule -The Consultant will submit a monthly invoice for services rendered.

7. Terms of Payment - Payment of fees as determined under Paragraph 5 herein above shall be due and

payable by Client within thirty (30) days following receipt of Consultant's monthly invoice.

8. Additional Services -Additional services beyond those described in the Scope of Services will be invoiced

on the basis of direct labor cost times a factor of 2.99 and direct cost plus 10%.

9. Insurance - Consultant shall maintain Worker's Compensation and Liability Insurance in accordance

with Attachment "B".

10. Termination - The Client may terminate this contract at any time by giving notice in writing to the

Consultant. In that case, all finished or unfinished documents and other materials produced under this

contract shall become the Client's property. If the contract is terminated by the Client in accordance

with this provision, Consultant shall be paid for all services performed to the date of termination.

11. Governing Law - This Agreement shall be deemed to have been made under, and shall be construed

and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas. The venue of any suit for

enforcement or construction of this contract shall be in Galveston County, Texas.

12. Indemnification - For consideration received, the undersigned agrees to indemnify, save, defend and

hold harmless the City of Texas City, Texas, its employees, officials, and agents from any and all claims,

actions, damages, lawsuits, proceedings, judgments, or liabilities, for personal injury, death or

property damage resulting from the negligent acts or omissions of the undersigned or negligent acts

Page 2 of3 



13. 

or omissions of others under the undersigned's supervision or control arising out of the performance 

of this agreement. 

Home Rule Municipality 

The City is a municipality incorporated under the laws of the State of Texas, and all laws regulating and 

concerning Texas municipalities apply, including budgetary laws, The City Charter and The City Code. 

Consultant acknowledges that the City may only act through its City Commission or a duly authorized 

representative of City Commission, and that any act of an employee or officer of the City that is not 

duly authorized is void. 

ENTERED INTO AND AGREED by the parties hereto as the day and year first written. 

ATIEST: 

Director of Finance 

ARKK ENGINEERS, LLC 

Consultant 

BY: !Wk lv� 
MAOHU KILAMBI, P.E. 

Senior Project Manager/ Principal 

CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS 

Client 

BY: 

MAYOR OF THE CITY OF TEXAS CITY 

Page 3 of 3 



November 6, 2023 

Mr. Corbin Ballast 

Director of Utilities 

City of Texas City 

911 Highway 146 North 

Texas City, Texas 77590 

� 

t-RKKENGINEERS 

ATTACHMENT "A" 

Re: Proposal for Engineering and Construction Phase Services for the City of Texas City's "Lift 

Station 7 and 15 Rehabilitation Project" 

Dear Mr. Ballast: 

ARKK Engineers, LLC {ARKK) is pleased to submit this proposal for engineering services associated 

with the referenced project. This proposal is based on our meetings and conversations and 

information provided by the City. A brief overview of the project and scope of services are 

provided below: 

GENERAL OVERVIEW 

This project involves rehabilitation of two lift stations {Lift Station #7 and Lift Station #15) located 

in the City of Texas City. The improvements proposed at these lift stations are summarized 

below. 

Lift Station # 7 

The existing lift station #7 is located on a small site within the street right of way of 23 rd Street, 

just north of 2nd Avenue North. The wet well is 6' diameter; the firm capacity is approximately 

350 gallons per minute; and the existing force main is 8-inch diameter. The scope of work will be 

to rehabilitate the lift station, while keeping the existing wet well basin intact. All new 

submersible pumps, hardware, piping, and slabs will be installed and a new electric service by 

Texas New Mexico Power (TNMP) will be provided. The new electric service at Lift Station No. 7 

will also include the necessary switchgear to meet service standards including a manual transfer 

switch for connection to a portable generator, if necessary. The existing fence will be replaced 

and the interior of the lift station site will be paved. 

Lift Station # 15 

The existing lift station #15 is located just west of and adjacent to the SH 146 railroad corridor, 

north of FM 1765, just north of the GCWA's industrial pump station forebay raw water basin. 

Access is through a gravel road easement. The existing station is in a suction-lift type pump 

Page 1 of 6 

7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040 • Houston, TX 77074 • (713)-400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com • TX PE Firm No. 13872 



configuration, with valves in a wooden shed. The facility will be converted to a submersible type 

pump station. The wet well is 6' diameter, and the firm capacity is approximately 650 gallons per 

minute. The existing force main is 8-inch diameter. The scope of work will be to rehabilitate the 

lift station, while keeping the existing wet well basin intact. All new submersible pumps, control 

panel, hardware, piping, and fencing will be installed. The interior of the lift station site will be 

paved and a new automatic transfer switch will be installed to be used with the existing generator 

on site. 

The project budget allocated for improvements to lift station #7 and lift station #15 is $1,225,000, 

which includes construction costs, engineering, construction phase services, and other costs. 

This proposal addresses the engineering services ARKK will provide the City during the Design 

and Construction Phases, as well as associated Surveying, and other services necessary to support 

the project. The two lift stations will be bid as one construction package. The proposal is 

separated into Basic Services (expected normal engineering services) and Special Services. 

During construction of the project, ARKK will provide a project representative to observe the 

progress of construction. The project representative will observe the progress of construction in 

conjunction with other on-going City projects with support from City's inspection services team. 

Therefore, full time inspection by ARKK Engineers personnel is not included in this proposal. A 

budget for inspection services is included in this proposal. 

The following section details the scope of engineering services proposed for this Project. 

SCOPE OF WORK 

I. DESIGN PHASE SERVICES

A. Basic Services - Design Phase

• Perform field reconnaissance and measurements of both lift station sites' geometry to

verify the wet well dimensions and other information that would impact design and

construction.

• Prepare project specifications, civil drawings, electrical drawings, and structural

drawings, and bid documents based on the anticipated improvements.

• Coordinate with lift station contractors for constructability review and comments.

• Provide draft sets of 60% plan drawings to the City for review and comments.

• Incorporate comments into the bid documents.

Page 2 of 6 

7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040 • Houston, TX 77074 • (713)-400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com • TX PE Firm No. 13872 



• Provide draft sets of 90% plan drawings and specifications to the City for review and

comments.

• Incorporate comments from the City into the final bid documents.

• Prepare a final cost estimate for the project.

• Furnish two (2) sets of construction documents to the City.

• Costs for reproduction will be charged under special services for reproduction of plans,

specifications and reports.

• Reproduction for review sets, submittals to the City, governmental agencies, and utility

companies will be included in the cost for reproduction.

B. Special Services - Design Phase

1. Topographic Surveying Services

• Conduct topographic survey of the lift station sites and+/- 20' around the perimeter,

of the project area.

• Utilize a survey sub-consultant mutually agreeable to the City and ARKK.

2. Geotechnical Services

• Geotechnical services are not proposed for this project, as they are not anticipated to

be needed.

3. Reproduction

• Costs for reproduction will be charged under special services for reproduction of

plans, specifications and reports beyond the two (2) sets of construction documents

provided (as listed in the design services) to the City.

• Reproduction for review sets, submittals to the City, governmental agencies, and

utility companies will be included in the cost for reproduction.

Page 3 of 6 

7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040 • Houston, TX 77074 • (713)-400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com • TX PE Firm No. 13872 



II. BID PHASE SERVICES

• Assist the City in obtaining bids for the project. The City will advertise the project and will

absorb all related advertising costs. ARKK will assist the City in developing the wording of

the advertisement.

• Dispense construction documents via the Civcast online plan room (by Amtek USA) to

prospective bidders.

• During the bidding phase, provide information to and answer questions from prospective

bidders regarding the Project's construction documents.

• Prepare project addendums as necessary.

• Conduct a pre-bid conference for prospective bidders.

• Evaluate the bids and the qualifications of the apparent low bidder and advise the City as

to the acceptability of the apparent low bidder.

Ill. CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 

A. Basic Services - Construction Administration

• Prepare four sets of contracts for execution by the successful bidder.

• Review and submit the contract documents to City for execution.

• Prepare an agenda for the pre-construction conference.

• Conduct a pre-construction conference for the project.

• Act as the City's Project representative during the construction phase.

• Review and respond accordingly to submittals as required by the contract

specifications.

• Prepare change orders necessitated by field conditions.

• Review the contractor's pay estimates, coordinate the completed work with City

representative, and make payment recommendations to the City.

Page 4 of 6 

7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040 • Houston, TX 77074 • (713)-400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com • TX PE Firm No. 13872 



• Visit the site at intervals appropriate to the various stages of construction to observe

the progress and quality of executed work and to determine in general if such work is

proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents.

• ARKK will not be responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences or

procedures of construction selected by the Contractor(s) or the safety precautions and

programs incident to the work of the Contractor(s). ARKK's effort will be directed

toward providing a greater degree of confidence for the City that the completed work

of Contractor(s) will conform to the Contract Documents, but ARKK will not be

responsible for the failure of Contractor(s) to perform the work in accordance with the

Contract Documents. During site visits and on the basis of on-site observations ARKK

shall keep the City informed of the progress of the work, shall endeavor to guard the

City against defects and deficiencies in such work and may disapprove or reject work

failing to conform to the Contract Documents.

• Conduct a final inspection of the Project and make a recommendation for Final

Payment on the project.

• Prepare a set of reproducible record plans based on the Contractor's red line marked

up as-built drawings.

B. Special Services - Construction Support Services

• Provide a project representative to periodically observe the progress of construction

activities and to assist in the interpretation of plans and specifications.

• This budget for this proposal is based on the project representative being on-site an

average of 8 to 10 hours per week during the active construction periods of the

construction contract. The anticipated construction contract duration for the project

is estimated to be 180 calendar days.

• The project representative will attend meetings with the Contractor and the City of

Texas City such as pre-construction conference, progress meetings, and other project

related meetings where his presence is requested by the City of Texas City.

• This support will be provided in an effort to aid in the process of observing

performance of work of the Contractor(s). Through more extensive on-site

observations of the work in progress, ARKK shall endeavor to provide further

protection for the City of Texas City against defects and deficiencies in the work of the

contractor(s); but the furnishing of such on-site representative will not make ARKK

responsible for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures or

safety precautions or programs, or for Contractor(s) failure to perform their work in

accordance with the Contract Documents.

Page 5 of 6 

7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040 • Houston, TX 77074 • (713)-400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com • TX PE Firm No. 13872 



FEE 

Design Services (Civil & Mechanical)- Lump Sum Amount of: $73,750.00 

Design Services (Electrical & Structural)- Lump Sum amount of: $21,000.00 

Topographic Surveying- Subcontractor's Cost plus 10%: $10,750.00 

Reproduction Budget - Lump Sum Amount of: $1,250.00 

Bid Phase Services - Lump Sum Amount of: $3,250.00 

Construction Administration Services (Civil & Mechanical) - Lump Sum Amount of: $22,325.00 

Construction Administration Services (Electrical/ Structural) - Lump Sum Amount of: $7,600.00 

Construction Support Services Budget: $ 29,750.00 

(Hourly and cost plus 10%, plus $40 daily vehicle cost) 

Construction Material Testing Budget - Cost plus 10%: $2,500.00 

Total Fee $172,175.00 

The anticipated construction contract duration for the project is estimated to be 180 calendar 

days. The construction support services budget is based on providing a project representative 

an average of 8 to 10 hours per week during construction. The budget includes hourly costs for 

a project representative, and supervisory services, and vehicle charges. Hourly charges for on

site field representative shall be charged based on a raw labor rate times a multiplier of 2.70. 

Reimbursable expenses will be charged at cost plus 10%. 

ARKK Engineers, LLC appreciates the opportunity to submit this proposal and we look forward to 

working with the City of Texas City on this very important project. 

Sincerely, 

ARKK ENGINEERS, LLC 

Madhu Kilambi, P.E. 

Senior Project Manager/ Principal 

cc: Mr. Jack Haralson - City of Texas City 

Page 6 of 6 

7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040 • Houston, TX 77074 • (713)-400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com • TX PE Firm No. 13872 

mmckinley
Highlight

mmckinley
Highlight



ATTACHMENT "B" 

INSURANCE LIMITS 

1. General Liability Each Occurrence: $1,000,000 

Damage to Rented Premises $1,000,000 

Medical Expenses (any one person) $10,000 

Personal and Adv. Injury $1,000,000 

General Aggregate: $2,000,000 

Products - Comp/Op Agg: $2,000,000 

2. Automobile Liability Combined Single Limit: $1,000,000 

3. Excess Liability Umbrella Form Each Occurrence: $1,000,000 

Aggregate: $1,000,000 

4. Worker's Compensation and

Employers Liability Each Accident: $500,000 

Disease - Each Employee: $500,000 

Disease - Policy Limit: $500,000 

5. Professional Liability Each Claim $1,000,000 

Policy Year Aggregate $1,000,000 

Page 1 of 1 

7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040 • Houston, TX 77074 • (713)-400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com • TX PE Firm No. 13872 



  

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-131 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO 

ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES WITH ARKK 

ENGINEERS, LLC, FOR THE CITY OF TEXAS CITY’S LIFT STATIONS 

NO.7 AND 15 REHABILITATION PROJECT; AND PROVIDING THAT 

THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER 

ITS PASSAGE AND ADOPTION.  

 

WHEREAS, the Public Works Department is requesting approval of an agreement with 

ARKK Engineers, LLC, for the City of Texas City’s Lift Stations No.7 and 15 Rehabilitation 

Project; and 

 

WHEREAS, ARKK Engineers, LLC, has submitted a proposal and agreement for services to 

provide engineering services for the Lift Stations No.7 and 15 Rehabilitation Project, as set out on 

Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and made a part hereof for all intents and purposes; and 

 

WHEREAS, the total cost, as set out on the attached proposal, is $172,175.00, and funds are 

available in the 2023/2024 budget.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS: 

 

SECTION 1: That the City Commission hereby accepts the proposal by ARKK Engineers, 

LLC, for the Texas City’s Lift Stations No.7 and 15 Rehabilitation Project. 

 

 SECTION 2:  That the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the Agreement for Services 

with ARKK Engineers, LLC, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” and made a part hereof for 

all intents and purposes, and that the Mayor be authorized to execute change orders, not to exceed 

25% of the total amount of the initial agreement, without going before the Commission. 

 

 SECTION 3: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 

and adoption. 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of November 2023. 

 

 

                                                                       

_______________________________ 

Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor  

      City of Texas City, Texas 

 

 



 2 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

_______________________    ____________________________    

Rhomari D. Leigh     Kyle L. Dickson 

City Secretary                                              City Attorney   

 



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (7) (h)        
Meeting Date: 11/15/2023  
First Payment to Gulf Coast Water Authority for Shannon Pump Station Rehabilitation
Submitted For: Mike McKinley, Public Works  Submitted By: Mike McKinley, Public

Works
Department: Public Works

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Approve the first payment to Gulf Coast Water Authority for our portion of the Shannon pump
station rehabilitation.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
The payment to GCWA (Gulf Coast Water Authority) in the amount of $537,322.11 is for the
first part of our portion of the Shannon pump station rehabilitation. We are paying a lump sum
instead of bond payment. Funds are made available in the 2023/2024 City of Texas City
Annual Budget.  A copy of this invoice is attached for your review.

RECOMMENDATION
It is the recommendation of the Public Works Department to approve payment of this invoice,
in the total amount of $537,322.11, for the first part of our portion of the Shannon pump station
rehabilitation.
 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Exhibit A 
Resolution 







RESOLUTION NO. 2023-132 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE FIRST PAYMENT TO GULF 

COAST WATER AUTHORITY FOR THE CITY’S PORTION OF THE 

SHANNON PUMP STATION REHABILITATION; AND PROVIDING 

THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND 

AFTER ITS PASSAGE AND ADOPTION.  
 

WHEREAS, the Shannon Plant was damaged during Hurricane Harvey and is in need of 

replacement. 

 

WHEREAS, the total project cost is approximately $100,000,000; and 

 

WHEREAS, The Galveston County Water Authority obtained a FEMA grant to pay for 

a large portion of the project, with the rest coming from their customers, municipal agencies, and 

industry; and 

 

WHEREAS, work will be done in two (2) phases, and the City has chosen to pay cash 

for phase one. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS: 

 

SECTION 1: That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, hereby 

approves the payment of $537,322.11 for phase one of the project. 

 

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage and adoption. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of November 2023. 

 

 

 

       ____________________________ 

       Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 

       City of Texas City, Texas 

 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

________________________   _______________________       

Rhomari D. Leigh     Kyle L. Dickson 

City Secretary      City Attorney 



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (7) (i)        
Meeting Date: 11/15/2023  
Award Commissioners' Community Grant to the Front Door Social & Charity Club (FDSCC)
Submitted For: Dedrick Johnson, Mayor's Office 
Submitted By: Titilayo Smith, Community Development/ Grant Admin
Department: Mayor's Office

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider and approve the award of a Commissioners Community Grant to the Front Door
Social and Charity Club (FDSCC) on behalf of Mayor Pro Tem Bowie. 

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
The FDSCC has faithfully served Galveston County residents since 1987.  While they serve all of Galveston
County, 80% of their support has been dedicated to the residents and students of Texas City.  FDSCC exists to
provide scholarships and charitable assistance to the less fortunate (i.e. Senior Citizen’s Monthly Electricity
Program, youth sports teams, school and hygiene supplies, LMHS band, cheerleaders, football team support,
etc.).   FDSCC raises funds for its charitable endeavors and scholarships with various annual fundraisers. 
Covid-19 drastically impacted their fundraising capabilities.  Their biggest annual expenditure is the Christmas
food and toy drive.  Each year FDSCC provides boxes of food and turkeys, gift cards, and a limited number of
bikes.  This year the Club hopes to bless 100 families with food (instead of 50).  Additionally, they want to
initiate a Christmas blessing for older children with haircuts, hair salon visits, and gift cards.  This year the FDSCC
is collaborating with the owners of ENDS to provide a Santa Claus, toys, games, and 100 bikes.  The Texas City
Commissioners Community Grant would be a blessing to Texas City as well as the FDSCC.  

 

RECOMMENDATION
It is the recommendation of the Mayor and the Director of Community Development and
Grants Administration that the Commission approve the award of this grant.

Fiscal Impact
Funds Available Y/N: Y
Amount Requested: $4,000
Source of Funds: Commission Community Grant Fund
Account #: 220101-54901-00013
Fiscal Impact:
The award of the grant will leave $1,000 for FY' 24 in Mayor Pro Tem Bowie's account.

Attachments
IRS Verification 
Grant Application 
Scholarship Photo 
School Supply Donation Pic 



School Supply Donation Pic 
School Supply Donation Pic 
Toiletries Donation Pic 
Christmas Toy Donation Pic 
Resolution 



11/8/23, 4:00 PM Tax Exempt Organization Search Details | Internal Revenue Service

https://apps.irs.gov/app/eos/details/ 1/2

The Front Door Social & Charity

Club

EIN: 76-0356549 | La Marque, Texas, United States

Publication 78 Data

Organizations eligible to receive tax-deductible charitable contributions. Users

may rely on this list in determining deductibility of their contributions.

On Publication 78 Data List: Yes

Deductibility Code: PC

Form 990-N (e-Postcard)

Organizations who have filed a 990-N (e-Postcard) annual electronic notice.

Most small organizations that receive less than $50,000 fall into this category.

Tax Year 2022 Form 990-N (e-Postcard)

Tax Year 2021 Form 990-N (e-Postcard)

Tax Year 2020 Form 990-N (e-Postcard)

Tax Year 2019 Form 990-N (e-Postcard)

Tax Year 2018 Form 990-N (e-Postcard)

Tax Year 2017 Form 990-N (e-Postcard)

Tax Year 2016 Form 990-N (e-Postcard)



11/8/23, 4:00 PM Tax Exempt Organization Search Details | Internal Revenue Service

https://apps.irs.gov/app/eos/details/ 2/2

Tax Year 2015 Form 990-N (e-Postcard)

Tax Year 2014 Form 990-N (e-Postcard)

Tax Year 2013 Form 990-N (e-Postcard)

Tax Year 2012 Form 990-N (e-Postcard)

Tax Year 2011 Form 990-N (e-Postcard)

Tax Year 2010 Form 990-N (e-Postcard)

Tax Year 2009 Form 990-N (e-Postcard)

Tax Year 2008 Form 990-N (e-Postcard)

Tax Year 2007 Form 990-N (e-Postcard)



 

 
 

Texas City Commissioners  
Community Grant Fund Application 

*This grant application is to be completed and submitted to the Mayor by a member of the Texas City Commission. 

 
 

Mayor Pro-Tem Thelma Bowie      At-Large 
Name of Sponsoring Commissioner      District 
 
 
          Front Door Social and Charity Club (FDSCC) 

Name of Benefitting Organization 
 
 

76-0356549 
Tax Exempt / 501c3 Nonprofit Status Number 

 
 
Amount Requested:   $4,000                                                    Date:  September 28, 2023 
 
 
Statement of Purpose and benefit to the Citizens of Texas City:  The FDSCC has faithfully served Galveston 

County residents since 1987.  While we serve all of Galveston County, 80% of our support has been dedicated 

to the residents and students of Texas City.  We exist to provide scholarships and charitable assistance to the 

less fortunate (i.e. Senior Citizen’s monthly electricity program, youth sports teams, school and hygiene 

supplies, LMHS band, cheerleaders, football team support, etc.)     The FDSCC raises funds for its charitable 

endeavors and scholarships  with various annual fundraisers.  Covid-19  drastically impacted our fundraising 

capabilities, and we are playing catch up.  Our biggest annual expenditure is our Christmas food and toy drive.  

Each year we provide boxes of food and turkeys, gift cards, and a limited number of  bikes.  This year we hope 

to bless 100 families with food (instead of 50).  Additionally, we want to initiate a Christmas blessing for older 

children with haircuts, hair salon visits, and gift cards.  This year the FDSCC is collaborating with the owners of 



 

ENDS to provide a Santa Clause, toys, games, and 100 bikes.  The  Texas City Commissioner  Community Grant 

would be a blessing  to Texas City as well as the FDSCC.  Please refer to attached pictures. 

 

Other Sources of Funding This Organization is Currently Receiving:  Other sources of funding include member  

monthly dues, club fundraisers, and donations. 

*Please note that the submission of this application does not guarantee an allocation of funds.  The awarding 
of this grant is contingent upon several factors, including, but not limited to those it being a qualifying 
organization, funds availability, purpose of funds requested, and final commission approval.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

COMMISSIONER COMMUNITY GRANTS 

GUIDELINES 

 

1.) Each member of the Commission can sponsor up to $5,000 (MAXIMUM) in Commissioner’s Community 

grant funds in a fiscal year, provided the budget is approved with those grant funds available.  

2.) Grant requests must be submitted to the Mayor, from the Commissioner who represents the district 

most impacted by the grant, or the district where the requesting organization is based.  Mayor will 

ensure all required documents are included in the Commissioner’s request.  Mayor will subsequently 

decide whether or not to advance the request to the City Commission for final approval. 

3.) The organization requesting funds from the City / Commissioner, must do so with a letter or an email.  

(This should be included in the sponsoring Commissioner’s request.) 

4.) The organization requesting funds should be a nonprofit / 501c3 / tax exempt organization whose 

services will directly benefit citizens of Texas City, Texas. 

5.) An organization may only receive funds from this funding mechanism once in a three-year period. This 

ensures fair opportunity and equitable distribution of funds to others who may need assistance and 

make requests. 

6.) A majority vote of the City Commission is required for final approval. 

7.) Commissioners should be conservative with the allocation of such funds as they will be requested 

often by all those aware of the program.  We can’t solve every financial crisis, but the PURPOSE of 

these Community Grants is to help those organizations who help our citizens by enhancing the quality 

of life here in Texas City.  

 

Required Documents:  

A.) Letter requesting funds, that also outlines what the funds will be used for.  

B.) A completed Community Grant Fund Application (from the sponsoring Commissioner) 

C.) Valid Documentation of Tax Exempt / Non-Profit Status 

 

 













 

 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2023-133 

 

A RESOLUTION AWARDING A COMMUNITY GRANT TO THE FRONT 

DOOR SOCIAL AND CHARITY CLUB (FDSCC) ON BEHALF OF MAYOR 

PRO TEM THELMA BOWIE, IN THE AMOUNT OF $4,000.00; AND 

PROVIDING THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE 

FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE AND ADOPTION. 

 

WHEREAS, FDSCC exists to provide scholarships and charitable assistance to the less 

fortunate (i.e. Senior Citizen’s Monthly Electricity Program, youth sports teams, school and 

hygiene supplies, LMHS band, cheerleaders, football team support, etc.). FDSCC raises funds 

for its charitable endeavors and scholarships with various annual fundraisers. Covid-19 

drastically impacted their fundraising capabilities. Their biggest annual expenditure is the 

Christmas food and toy drive. Each year FDSCC provides boxes of food and turkeys, gift cards, 

and a limited number of bikes.  The Club hopes to bless 100 families with food (instead of 50) 

this year.  Additionally, they want to initiate a Christmas blessing for older children with 

haircuts, hair salon visits, and gift cards. This year the FDSCC is collaborating with the owners 

of ENDS to provide a Santa Claus, toys, games, and 100 bikes; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of Mayor Johnson and the Director of Community 

Development & Grants Administration that a grant be awarded in the amount of $4,000.00 on 

behalf of Mayor Pro Tem Thelma Bowie. 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS: 

 

 SECTION 1: That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, approves the 

expenditure of a Community Grant to the Baby Stewart Foundation, on behalf of Mayor Pro 

Tem Bowie, in the amount of $4,000.00 to provide scholarships and charitable assistance to the 

less fortunate (i.e. Senior Citizen’s Monthly Electricity Program, youth sports teams, school and 

hygiene supplies, LMHS band, cheerleaders, football team support, etc.).   

 
 SECTION 2:  That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 
and adoption. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of November 2023. 

 

 

 

______________________________ 

Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr. Mayor    

      City of Texas City, Texas 

 

 

 

 



 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

                                                        _____________________________   

Rhomari D. Leigh     Kyle L. Dickson 

City Secretary      City Attorney 

 

 



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (7) (j)        
Meeting Date: 11/15/2023  
Renewal of Professional Services Agreement with Texas City-La Marque Chamber of Commerce
Submitted For: Kristin Edwards, Economic Development 
Submitted By: Kristin Edwards, Economic Development
Department: Economic Development

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-134, renewing agreement with Texas
City-La Marque Chamber of Commerce. 

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
On November 18, 2020, City Commission approved Resolution No. 20-121, approving a
three-year Professional Services Agreement between the City of Texas City and the Texas
City-La Marque Chamber of Commerce.

The agreement included a clause allowing the agreement to be renewed for an additional
three (3) years.

Staff is requesting that the agreement be renewed for an additional three (3) years, with an
adjustment in compensation to the Chamber from $50,000 to $60,000 to allow for additional
services as detailed in Exhibit A.

RECOMMENDATION
Approve Resolution No. 2023-134, renewing agreement with Texas City-La Marque Chamber
of Commerce.

Fiscal Impact
Funds Available Y/N: Y
Amount Requested: $60,000
Source of Funds: Co-funded: Hotel Occupancy Tax fund and EDC
Account #: 201-401-54630
Fiscal Impact:
Per above, the $60,000 agreement will be co-funded from HOT (201-401-54630) and EDC
funding from Contributions/Donations (801-050-54180).

Attachments
Chamber Agreement 
Resolution 



 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

This Professional Services Agreement ("Agreement'') is by and between the City of Texas City 
('City"), and the Greater Texas City- La Marque Chamber of Commerce, a Texas non-profit corporation 
("Chamber") located at 9702 Emmett F Lowry Expressway, Texas City, Texas, 77590 for fiscal years 
2024-2026.  

 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Texas City-La Marque Chamber of Commerce provides community and 
economic development services to businesses and potential businesses in Texas City;  

WHEREAS, the Texas City-La Marque Chamber of Commerce provides marketing and  

advocacy services to position Texas City as a destination for tourism and tourism related activities;  

WHEREAS, the City of Texas City desires to contract with the Texas City-La Marque Chamber 
of Commerce for a three-year period with an option to renew to provide community and economic 
development services; and  

NOW, TIIEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises and 
agreements contained herein, the parties do hereby covenant and agree as follows:  

 

AGREEMENT 

1.  Services: Chamber agrees to fully preform, or cause to be performed, with good faith and 
due diligence, all measurable ("Services") described in the attached Exhibit "A" and incorporated herein 
for all purposes incident to this Agreement.  

2.  Term: The term of this agreement shall be for three (3) years ("Term"), beginning 
November 18, 2023, and ending November 17, 2026, renewable for an additional term of three (3) years 
by mutual consent of the Parties. Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time by giving thirty 
(30) days written notice to the other party. 

3. Reporting: The Chamber shall provide a written report regarding the achievement of the 
Services not less than annually to the Texas City Economic Development Corporation, ("TCEDC") and 
the City's Commission. The reports shall include progress towards accomplishing the measurables 
described in Exhibit "A.” 

4. Use of Funds: The Chamber agrees to utilize the funds provided by the City only for 
Services described in Exhibit ''A".  



5.  Compensation: In consideration for the Services to be provided by the Chamber as 
outlined in Exhibit 4'A", the City shall compensate the Chamber in the total amount of $60,000.00 
annually during the Tenn of this Agreement. Payment for Services rendered by the Chamber shall be paid 
by the City quarterly within 30 days of submittal of a written invoice. 

6. Miscellaneous: 

6.1  It is expressly understood and agreed that under this Agreement the City neither waives, 
nor shall be deemed to waive, any immunity or defense that would otherwise be available to it against 
claims arising in the exercise of governmental powers and functions.  

6.2  Each party to this Agreement agrees that in any legal action brought hereunder, venue 
shall lie in Galveston County, Texas. The validity of this Agreement and of its terms and provision, as 
well as the rights and duties of the parties, shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas.  

6.3  In case any one or more of the provisions contained in the Agreement shall for any 
reason be held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such fact shall not affect any other 
provision thereof and this Agreement shall be construed as if the stricken provision had never been 
contained herein.  

6.4  This Agreement may be amended or modified by the mutual agreement of both parties 
hereto in writing. such writing to be attached hereto and incorporated unto this Agreement.  

6.5  This Agreement contains all commitments and obligations of the parties and represents 
the entire agreement of said parties. Verbal or written conditions not contained herein shall not have any 
force or effect to alter any term of this Agreement.  

6.6  This Agreement may be terminated at any time before its expiration with mutual consent 
of both parties. Neither party shall be responsible for damages or expected to fulfill its obligations under 
this Agreement should an act of God or other unforeseen catastrophe occur and cause such damage or 
prevent the performance of such obligation.  

6.7  The captions, numbering sequences, titles, paragraph headings, punctuation, and 
organization used in this Agreement are for convenience only and shall in no way define, limit� or 
describe the scope or intent of this Agreement or any part of it.  

6.8  By execution of this Agreement, the parties acknowledge that they have read and 
understand each provision, term, and obligation contained in this Agreement. This Agreement, although 
drawn by one party, shall be construed fairly and reasonably and not more strictly against the drafting 
party than the non-drafting party. 

6.9 Any notices due under the provisions of this Agreement shall be made in writing and 
shall be addressed to the following: 

 City of Texas City 

1801 9th Avenue North 

Texas City, TX 77590 

Attention: Dedrick Johnson, Mayor 

 



Texas City-La Marque Chamber of Commerce  

9702 E.F. Lowry Expressway  

Texas City, Texas 77590  

Attention: Tim Culp, President/CEO 

 

 EXECUTED this ______ day of November, 2023. 

 

 CITY OF TEXAS CITY 

 

 By:____________________________________ 

 Dedrick Johnson, Mayor 

 

 TEXAS CITY-LA MARQUE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 

 

 By:____________________________________ 

 Tim Culp, President/CEO 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Exhibit A: Texas City-La Marque Chamber of Commerce Services 

 

I. Special Events: The Chamber will provide to the City sponsor recognition at its annual special 
events. These events are intended to provide business development opportunities for citizens in 
the community. This will include tables/tickets and signage signifying the City of Texas City as 
an event sponsor. The events included are: 

a. Golf Classic (2 teams) 

b. Annual Banquet (24 tickets) 

c. Industrial Trade Show (8 tickets) 

d. Health Expo (8 tickets) 

e. Community Shrimp Boil (8 tickets) 

f. New Teacher Event (signage) 

 

II. Business Luncheons: The Chamber hosts business luncheons throughout the year and will 
provide 8 tickets for the City to attend these luncheons. The luncheons are intended to provide promotion 
of existing businesses within the City of Texas City and to promote further economic development. 

III. The Chamber develops and distributes an annual publication titled "Community Guide & 
Business Directory." As part of this publication, the City will be provided one full-page advertisement 
and space for editorial text about City amenities and services to include housing and economic activity. 

IV. The Chamber develops and releases an Economic Profile publication, which is intended to 
provide detailed information for prospects, legislators, visitors, and new residents alike. The City will 
provide input to the Chamber and current data for the publication. It will be updated as necessary 
throughout the year. It is available online and in print. 

V. City staff will collaborate with the Chamber on coordinated marketing efforts to promote tourism, 
economic development, and the health of the local economy. 

VI. The Chamber will provide administrative services and clerical support for Texas City visitor 
information requests via phone, walk-ins, mail and internet on an on-going basis during the contract 
period. 

VII. The Chamber will provide digital copies of the Hot Deals publication to City staff for local and 
industry publication. 

VIII. The Chamber will host a minimum of four (4) meetings with local/regional hotel operators to 
include City staff. 

IX. Chamber Board: As part of this agreement, the Chamber will allocate one (1) seat on the 
Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors to a City staff member. 



  

 

    RESOLUTION NO. 2023-134 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO 

ENTER INTO A PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF TEXAS CITY AND TEXAS CITY - LA MARQUE CHAMBER 

OF COMMERCE; AND PROVIDING THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL 

BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE AND 

ADOPTION. 

 

WHEREAS, on November 18, 2020, the City Commission approved Resolution No. 2020-

121, approving a three-year Professional Services Agreement between the City of Texas City and the 

Texas City-La Marque Chamber of Commerce. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS: 

 

SECTION 1: That the City Commission approves the renewed agreement with the Texas 

City- La Marque Chamber of Commerce for an additional (3) three years. 

 

SECTION 2:  That the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the renewed agreement with 

the Texas City- La Marque Chamber of Commerce as detailed in the form attached hereto as 

Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof for all intents and purposes. 

 

SECTION 3: The term of this agreement shall be for three (3) years (“Term”), beginning 

November 18, 2023, and ending November 17, 2026, renewable for an additional term of three (3) 

years by mutual consent of the Parties. Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time by 

giving thirty (30) day's written notice to the other party. 

 

SECTION 4: In consideration for the Services to be provided by the Chamber as outlined in 

Exhibit “A,” the City shall compensate the Chamber with an adjustment in compensation from 

$50,000.00 to $60,000.00 to allow for additional services.  

 

 SECTION 5: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 

and adoption. 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of November 2023. 

 

 

 

      _______________________________ 

      Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor   

      City of Texas City, Texas 

 



ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

___________________________    ____________________________  

Rhomari D. Leigh      Kyle L. Dickson 

City Secretary       City Attorney 



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (8) (a)        
Meeting Date: 11/15/2023  
Submitted By: Rhomari Leigh, City Secretary
Department: City Secretary

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider and take action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 2023-39, amending the
Texas City Code of Ordinances Title XV Entitled “Land Usage,” Chapter 150: Building
Regulations; Construction" to adopt the most current International Building
Codes. (Legal/Building Official)

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
RECOMMENDATION

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Ordinance 



Page 1 of 5 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-39 

 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF TEXAS, TEXAS, 

AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES TITLE XV ENTITLED “LAND USAGE”, 

CHAPTER 150 ENTITLED “BUILDING REGULATIONS; CONSTRUCTION”; AND 

PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Texas City, Texas is authorized to regulate ordinances pursuant 

to Texas Local Government Code;  

 

 WHEREAS, the City Commission of the city of Texas City, Texas needs to amend the 

Code of Ordinance Title XV Entitled “Land Usage”, Chapter 150 – Building Regulations; 

Construction to adopt the most current International Building Codes;  

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Texas City utilizes the code council “Family of Models Building 

Codes;  

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to TEX. LOCAL GOV’T. CODE § 214.211 et seq., and TEX. HEALTH 

& SAFTY CODE § 388.003 et seq. the city of Texas City, Texas is authorized to adopt standard 

building codes for residential, commercial and industrial construction; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Commission determines that amending Title XV, Chapter 150, will 

promote the health, safety and welfare of the City; 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY 

OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS, THAT: 

 

 Section 1. The above and foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are 

incorporated herein as findings of fact. The City Commission hereby further finds and determines 

that the rules, regulations, terms, conditions, provisions, and requirements of this ordinance are 

reasonable and necessary to protect the public health, safety, and quality of life. The City of Texas 

City’s Code of Ordinances, Chapter 150 - Entitled “Building Regulations; Construction” is hereby 

amended by deleting in its entirety all the existing language in Section 150.050(A) and replacing 

it with the following: 

 

Sec. 151.050(A) - There is hereby adopted for and by the City a standard code 

known as the International Building Code, 2021 edition, with appendices and 

amendments thereto, passed and recommended by the International Code Council, 

Inc., which code is published in book form and which is referred to, incorporated 

in this section and made a part of this section for all purposes. A copy of such code 

is filed of record in the office of the City Secretary. Adoption of subsequent 

amendments, supplement or new edition(s) is automatic upon publication by the 

International Code Council, Inc.  

 

The City of Texas City’s Code of Ordinances, Chapter 150 (Entitled “150 – Building 

Regulations; Construction”) is hereby amended by deleting in its entirety all the existing language 



Page 2 of 5 

in Section 150.065(A) and replacing it with the following: 

 

Sec. 154.065(A) - There is hereby adopted for and by the City a standard code 

known as the International Amusement Device Code, 2021 edition, with 

appendices and amendments thereto, passed and recommended by the International 

Code Council, Inc., which code is published in book form and which is referred to, 

incorporated in this section and made a part of this section for all purposes. A copy 

of such code is filed of record in the office of the City Secretary. Adoption of 

subsequent amendments, supplement or new edition(s) is automatic upon 

publication by the International Code Council, Inc.  

 

The City of Texas City’s Code of Ordinances, Chapter 150 (Entitled “150 – Building 

Regulations; Construction”) is hereby amended by deleting in its entirety all the existing language 

in Section 150.066(A) and replacing it with the following: 

 

Sec. 154.066(A) - There is hereby adopted for and by the City a standard code 

known as the International Property Maintenance Code, 2021 edition, with 

appendices and amendments thereto, passed and recommended by the International 

Code Council, Inc., which code is published in book form and which is referred to, 

incorporated in this section and made a part of this section for all purposes. A copy 

of such code is filed of record in the office of the City Secretary. Adoption of 

subsequent amendments, supplement or new edition(s) is automatic upon 

publication by the International Code Council, Inc.  

 

The City of Texas City’s Code of Ordinances, Chapter 150 (Entitled “150 – Building 

Regulations; Construction”) is hereby amended by deleting in its entirety all the existing language 

in Section 150.067(A) and replacing it with the following: 

 

Sec. 154.067(A) - There is hereby adopted for and by the City a standard code 

known as the International Energy Conservation Code, 2021 edition, with 

appendices and amendments thereto, passed and recommended by the International 

Code Council, Inc., which code is published in book form and which is referred to, 

incorporated in this section and made a part of this section for all purposes. A copy 

of such code is filed of record in the office of the City Secretary. Adoption of 

subsequent amendments, supplement or new edition(s) is automatic upon 

publication by the International Code Council, Inc.  

 

 The City of Texas City’s Code of Ordinances, Chapter 150 (Entitled “150 – Building 

Regulations; Construction”) is hereby amended by deleting in its entirety all the existing language 

in Section 150.070(A) and replacing it with the following: 

 

Sec. 151.070(A) - There is hereby adopted for and by the City a standard code 

known as the International Existing Building Code, 2021 edition, with appendices 

and amendments thereto, passed and recommended by the International Code 

Council, Inc., which code is published in book form and which is referred to, 

incorporated in this section and made a part of this section for all purposes. A copy 



Page 3 of 5 

of such code is filed of record in the office of the City Secretary. Adoption of 

subsequent amendments, supplement or new edition(s) is automatic upon 

publication by the International Code Council, Inc.  

 

The City of Texas City’s Code of Ordinances, Chapter 150 (Entitled “150 – Building 

Regulations; Construction”) is hereby amended by deleting in its entirety all the existing language 

in Section 150.071(A) and replacing it with the following: 

 

Sec. 151.071(A) - There is hereby adopted for and by the City a standard code 

known as the International Housing Code, 2021 edition, with appendices and 

amendments thereto, passed and recommended by the International Code Council, 

Inc., which code is published in book form and which is referred to, incorporated 

in this section and made a part of this section for all purposes. A copy of such code 

is filed of record in the office of the City Secretary. Adoption of subsequent 

amendments, supplement or new edition(s) is automatic upon publication by the 

International Code Council, Inc.  

 

Section 2. This ordinance shall be cumulative of all provisions of the City of Texas 

City, Texas, except where the provisions of this Ordinance are in direct conflict with the provisions 

of such Ordinances, in which event the more restrictive provision shall apply. 

 

Section 3.  It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Commission of the City 

of Texas City that the phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, and sections of this Ordinance are 

severable, and if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance should be 

declared unconstitutional by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, 

such unconstitutionality shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, 

paragraphs or sections of this Ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City 

Commission without incorporation in this Ordinance of any such unconstitutional phrase, clause, 

sentence, paragraph or section. 

 

Section 4. All rights and privileges of the City of Texas City are expressly saved as to 

any and all violations of the provisions of any Ordinances affecting land use or development, which 

have accrued at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance; and, as to such accrued violations 

and all pending litigation, both civil and criminal, whether pending in court or not, under such 

Ordinances, same shall not be affected by this Ordinance but may be prosecuted until final 

disposition by the courts. 

 

 Section 5. That this Ordinance shall be read on three (3) separate days and shall 

become effective upon its final reading, passage, and adoption. 

 

Section 6. That this Ordinance shall be finally passed upon the date of its introduction 

and shall become effective from and after its passage and adoption and publication by caption only 

in the official newspaper of the City of Texas City, Texas 

 

 PASSED ON FIRST READING this 16th day of October 2023. 

 



Page 4 of 5 

 

________________________ 

Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor  

City of Texas City, Texas 

 

ATTEST:  

 

_______________________________ 

Rhomari D. Leigh 

City Secretary 

   

 

  



Page 5 of 5 

 

 PASSED ON SECOND READING this 1st day of November 2023. 

 

 

________________________ 

Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor  

City of Texas City, Texas 

 

ATTEST:  

 

_______________________________ 

Rhomari D. Leigh 

City Secretary 

 

 

  PASSED AND FINALLY ADOPTED this 15th day of November 2023. 

 

 

________________________ 

Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor  

City of Texas City, Texas 

 

 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

_______________________    _______________________   

Rhomari D. Leigh     Kyle L. Dickson 

City Secretary      City Attorney 



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (8) (b)        
Meeting Date: 11/15/2023  
Submitted By: Rhomari Leigh, City Secretary
Department: City Secretary

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider and take action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 2023-40, amending the
Texas City Code of Ordinances Title XV Entitled “Land Usage,” Chapter 152: Gas," to adopt
the most current International Building Codes. (Legal/Building Official)

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
RECOMMENDATION

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Ordinance 



Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-40 

 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF TEXAS, TEXAS 

AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES TITLE XV ENTITLED “LAND USAGE”, 

CHAPTER 152 ENTITLED “GAS”; AND PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Texas City, Texas is authorized to regulate ordinances pursuant 

to Texas Local Government Code;  

 

 WHEREAS, the City Commission of the city of Texas City, Texas needs to amend the 

Code of Ordinance Title XV Entitled “Land Usage”, Chapter 152 – Gas to adopt the most current 

International Building Codes;  

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Texas City utilizes the code council “Family of Models Building 

Codes;  

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to TEX. LOCAL GOV’T. CODE § 214.211 et seq., and TEX. HEALTH 

& SAFTY CODE § 388.003 et seq. the city of Texas City, Texas is authorized to adopt standard 

building codes for residential, commercial and industrial construction; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Commission determines that amending Title XV, Chapter 152, will 

promote the health, safety and welfare of the City; 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY 

OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS, THAT: 

 

 Section 1. The above and foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are 

incorporated herein as findings of fact. The City Commission hereby further finds and determines 

that the rules, regulations, terms, conditions, provisions, and requirements of this ordinance are 

reasonable and necessary to protect the public health, safety, and quality of life. The City of Texas 

City’s Code of Ordinances, Chapter 152 - Entitled “Gas” is hereby amended by deleting in its 

entirety all the existing language in Section 152.04(A) and replacing it with the following: 

 

Sec. 152.04(A) - There is hereby adopted for and by the City a standard code known 

as the International Fuel Gas Code, 2021 edition, with appendices and amendments 

thereto, passed and recommended by the International Code Council, Inc., which 

code is published in book form and which is referred to, incorporated in this section 

and made a part of this section for all purposes. A copy of such code is filed of 

record in the office of the City Secretary. Adoption of subsequent amendments, 

supplement or new edition(s) is automatic upon publication by the International 

Code Council, Inc.  

 

 

Section 2. This ordinance shall be cumulative of all provisions of the City of Texas 

City, Texas, except where the provisions of this Ordinance are in direct conflict with the provisions 



Page 2 of 3 

of such Ordinances, in which event the more restrictive provision shall apply. 

 

Section 3.  It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Commission of the City 

of Texas City that the phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, and sections of this Ordinance are 

severable, and if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance should be 

declared unconstitutional by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, 

such unconstitutionality shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, 

paragraphs or sections of this Ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City 

Commission without incorporation in this Ordinance of any such unconstitutional phrase, clause, 

sentence, paragraph or section. 

 

Section 4. All rights and privileges of the City of Texas City are expressly saved as to 

any and all violations of the provisions of any Ordinances affecting land use or development, which 

have accrued at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance; and, as to such accrued violations 

and all pending litigation, both civil and criminal, whether pending in court or not, under such 

Ordinances, same shall not be affected by this Ordinance but may be prosecuted until final 

disposition by the courts. 

 

 Section 5. That this Ordinance shall be read on three (3) separate days and shall 

become effective upon its final reading, passage, and adoption. 

 

Section 6. That this Ordinance shall be finally passed upon the date of its introduction 

and shall become effective from and after its passage and adoption and publication by caption only 

in the official newspaper of the City of Texas City, Texas 

 

 PASSED ON FIRST READING this 16th day of October 2023. 

 

 

________________________ 

Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor  

City of Texas City, Texas 

 

ATTEST:  

 

_______________________________ 

Rhomari D. Leigh 

City Secretary 

   

 

  



Page 3 of 3 

 

 PASSED ON SECOND READING this 1st day of November 2023. 

 

 

________________________ 

Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor  

City of Texas City, Texas 

 

ATTEST:  

 

_______________________________ 

Rhomari D. Leigh 

City Secretary 

 

 

  PASSED AND FINALLY ADOPTED this 15th day of November 2023. 

 

 

________________________ 

Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor  

City of Texas City, Texas 

 

 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

_______________________    _______________________   

Rhomari D. Leigh     Kyle L. Dickson 

City Secretary      City Attorney 



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (8) (c)        
Meeting Date: 11/15/2023  
Submitted By: Rhomari Leigh, City Secretary
Department: City Secretary

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider and take action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 2023-41, amending the
Texas City Code of Ordinances Title XV Entitled “Land Usage,” Chapter 153: Mechanical
Regulations," to adopt the most current International Building Codes. (Legal/Building Official)

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
RECOMMENDATION

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Ordinance 



Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-41 

 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF TEXAS, TEXAS 

AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES TITLE XV ENTITLED “LAND USAGE”, 

CHAPTER 153 ENTITLED “MECHANICAL REGULATIONS”; AND PROVIDING FOR 

PUBLICATION AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Texas City, Texas is authorized to regulate ordinances pursuant 

to Texas Local Government Code;  

 

 WHEREAS, the City Commission of the city of Texas City, Texas needs to amend the 

Code of Ordinance Title XV Entitled “Land Usage”, Chapter 153 – Mechanical Regulations to 

adopt the most current International Building Codes;  

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Texas City utilizes the code council “Family of Models Building 

Codes;  

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to TEX. LOCAL GOV’T. CODE § 214.211 et seq., and TEX. HEALTH 

& SAFTY CODE § 388.003 et seq. the city of Texas City, Texas is authorized to adopt standard 

building codes for residential, commercial and industrial construction; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Commission determines that amending Title XV, Chapter 153, will 

promote the health, safety and welfare of the City; 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY 

OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS, THAT: 

 

 Section 1. The above and foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are 

incorporated herein as findings of fact. The City Commission hereby further finds and determines 

that the rules, regulations, terms, conditions, provisions, and requirements of this ordinance are 

reasonable and necessary to protect the public health, safety, and quality of life. The City of Texas 

City’s Code of Ordinances, Chapter 153 - Entitled “Mechanical” is hereby amended by deleting 

in its entirety all the existing language in Section 153.01(A) and replacing it with the following: 

 

Sec. 153.01(A) - There is hereby adopted for and by the City a standard code known 

as the International Mechanical Code, 2021 edition, with appendices and 

amendments thereto, passed and recommended by the International Code Council, 

Inc., which code is published in book form and which is referred to, incorporated 

in this section and made a part of this section for all purposes. A copy of such code 

is filed of record in the office of the City Secretary. Adoption of subsequent 

amendments, supplement or new edition(s) is automatic upon publication by the 

International Code Council, Inc.  

 

Section 2. This ordinance shall be cumulative of all provisions of the City of Texas 

City, Texas, except where the provisions of this Ordinance are in direct conflict with the provisions 

of such Ordinances, in which event the more restrictive provision shall apply. 



Page 2 of 3 

 

Section 3.  It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Commission of the City 

of Texas City that the phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, and sections of this Ordinance are 

severable, and if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance should be 

declared unconstitutional by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, 

such unconstitutionality shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, 

paragraphs or sections of this Ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City 

Commission without incorporation in this Ordinance of any such unconstitutional phrase, clause, 

sentence, paragraph or section. 

 

Section 4. All rights and privileges of the City of Texas City are expressly saved as to 

any and all violations of the provisions of any Ordinances affecting land use or development, which 

have accrued at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance; and, as to such accrued violations 

and all pending litigation, both civil and criminal, whether pending in court or not, under such 

Ordinances, same shall not be affected by this Ordinance but may be prosecuted until final 

disposition by the courts. 

 

 Section 5. That this Ordinance shall be read on three (3) separate days and shall 

become effective upon its final reading, passage, and adoption. 

 

Section 6. That this Ordinance shall be finally passed upon the date of its introduction 

and shall become effective from and after its passage and adoption and publication by caption only 

in the official newspaper of the City of Texas City, Texas 

 

 PASSED ON FIRST READING this 16th day of October 2023. 

 

 

________________________ 

Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor  

City of Texas City, Texas 

 

ATTEST:  

 

_______________________________ 

Rhomari D. Leigh 

City Secretary 

   

 

  



Page 3 of 3 

 

 PASSED ON SECOND READING this 1st day of November 2023. 

 

 

________________________ 

Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor  

City of Texas City, Texas 

 

ATTEST:  

 

_______________________________ 

Rhomari D. Leigh 

City Secretary 

 

 

  PASSED AND FINALLY ADOPTED this 15th day of November 2023. 

 

 

________________________ 

Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor  

City of Texas City, Texas 

 

 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

_______________________    _______________________   

Rhomari D. Leigh     Kyle L. Dickson 

City Secretary      City Attorney 



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (8) (d)        
Meeting Date: 11/15/2023  
Submitted By: Rhomari Leigh, City Secretary
Department: City Secretary

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider and take action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 2023-42, amending the
Texas City Code of Ordinances Title XV Entitled “Land Usage,” Chapter 154: Plumbing," to
adopt the most current International Building Codes. (Legal/Building Official)

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
RECOMMENDATION

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Ordinance 



Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-42 

 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF TEXAS, TEXAS 

AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES TITLE XV ENTITLED “LAND USAGE”, 

CHAPTER 154 ENTITLED “PLUMBING”; AND PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION 

AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Texas City, Texas is authorized to regulate ordinances pursuant 

to Texas Local Government Code;  

 

 WHEREAS, the City Commission of the city of Texas City, Texas needs to amend the 

Code of Ordinance Title XV Entitled “Land Usage”, Chapter 154 – Plumbing to adopt the most 

current International Building Codes;  

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Texas City utilizes the code council “Family of Models Building 

Codes;  

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to TEX. LOCAL GOV’T. CODE § 214.211 et seq., and TEX. HEALTH 

& SAFTY CODE § 388.003 et seq. the city of Texas City, Texas is authorized to adopt standard 

building codes for residential, commercial and industrial construction; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Commission determines that amending Title XV, Chapter 154, will 

promote the health, safety and welfare of the City; 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY 

OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS, THAT: 

 

 Section 1. The above and foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are 

incorporated herein as findings of fact. The City Commission hereby further finds and determines 

that the rules, regulations, terms, conditions, provisions, and requirements of this ordinance are 

reasonable and necessary to protect the public health, safety, and quality of life. The City of Texas 

City’s Code of Ordinances, Chapter 154 - Entitled “Plumbing” is hereby amended by deleting in 

its entirety all the existing language in Section 154.05(A)(1) and replacing it with the following: 

 

Sec. 154.05(A)(1) - There is hereby adopted for and by the City a standard code 

known as the International Plumbing Code, 2021 edition, with appendices and 

amendments thereto, passed and recommended by the International Code Council, 

Inc., which code is published in book form and which is referred to, incorporated 

in this section and made a part of this section for all purposes. A copy of such code 

is filed of record in the office of the City Secretary. Adoption of subsequent 

amendments, supplement or new edition(s) is automatic upon publication by the 

International Code Council, Inc.  

 

Section 2. This ordinance shall be cumulative of all provisions of the City of Texas 

City, Texas, except where the provisions of this Ordinance are in direct conflict with the provisions 

of such Ordinances, in which event the more restrictive provision shall apply. 



Page 2 of 3 

 

Section 3.  It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Commission of the City 

of Texas City that the phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, and sections of this Ordinance are 

severable, and if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance should be 

declared unconstitutional by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, 

such unconstitutionality shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, 

paragraphs or sections of this Ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City 

Commission without incorporation in this Ordinance of any such unconstitutional phrase, clause, 

sentence, paragraph or section. 

 

Section 4. All rights and privileges of the City of Texas City are expressly saved as to 

any and all violations of the provisions of any Ordinances affecting land use or development, which 

have accrued at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance; and, as to such accrued violations 

and all pending litigation, both civil and criminal, whether pending in court or not, under such 

Ordinances, same shall not be affected by this Ordinance but may be prosecuted until final 

disposition by the courts. 

 

 Section 5. That this Ordinance shall be read on three (3) separate days and shall 

become effective upon its final reading, passage, and adoption. 

 

Section 6. That this Ordinance shall be finally passed upon the date of its introduction 

and shall become effective from and after its passage and adoption and publication by caption only 

in the official newspaper of the City of Texas City, Texas 

 

 PASSED ON FIRST READING this 16th day of October 2023. 

 

 

________________________ 

Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor  

City of Texas City, Texas 

 

ATTEST:  

 

_______________________________ 

Rhomari D. Leigh 

City Secretary 

   

 

  



Page 3 of 3 

 

 PASSED ON SECOND READING this 1st day of November 2023. 

 

 

________________________ 

Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor  

City of Texas City, Texas 

 

ATTEST:  

 

_______________________________ 

Rhomari D. Leigh 

City Secretary 

 

 

  PASSED AND FINALLY ADOPTED this 15th day of November 2023. 

 

 

________________________ 

Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor  

City of Texas City, Texas 

 

 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

_______________________    _______________________   

Rhomari D. Leigh     Kyle L. Dickson 

City Secretary      City Attorney 



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (8) (e)        
Meeting Date: 11/15/2023  
amending the Texas City Code of Ordinances entitled "General Regulations", Chapter 90: "Streets
Sidewalks and Other Public Places" to adopt and become effective upon its final reading
Submitted For: Kim Golden, Transportation and Planning 
Submitted By: Veronica Carreon, Transportation and Planning
Department: Transportation and Planning

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Approve recommended changes to Chapter 90.012 of the Code or Ordinances regarding the
use of unimproved/unopened rights of way. 

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
This change is recommended to conform with existing city policies regarding the construction
and maintenance of city streets by Public Works and the operation of fire engines and aerial
apparatus on solid surfaced roadways defined as asphalt or concrete surface pavement.   

Through annexation and past practices some areas of Texas City have unimproved,
unopened rights of way which are not city maintained streets.  The Subdivision Ordinance
requires all new residential lots to have frontage on a public street.  However, there is some
confusion about the requirements for existing residential lots or parcels adjacent to an
unimproved, unopened right of way.  The recommended change to Chapter 90.012 will
resolve the confusion by making the street  standards of the Subdivision Ordinance Chapter
159 applicable to existing residential lots or parcels adjacent to unimproved, unopened rights
of way.
 

RECOMMENDATION
The following departments have worked together in drafting the proposed revisions to Chapter
90.012 of the Code of Ordinances and recommend its approval:
      Engineering & Planning,
      Building Permits & Inspections,
      Public Works,
      Fire Department

 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
FINAL Proposed revision to 90.012 - use of rights of way 



 

 

ORDINANCE 23- 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 

TEXAS, TEXAS AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES TITLE IX 

ENTITLED “GENERAL REGULATIONS”, CHAPTER 90 ENTITLED 

“STREETS, SIDEWALKS AND OTHER PUBLIC PLACES”; AND 

PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

WHEREAS, there are several unimproved/unopened rights of way in Texas City which predate 

the current provisions the Subdivision and Zoning ordinances, and 

WHEREAS, it is the policy of the City of Texas City to maintain roads that are constructed in 

accordance with the design standards and applicable provisions of Chapter 159 – Subdivisions, 

including the donation of additional rights of way if necessary, and  

WHEREAS, it is the policy of the City of Texas City that the public works department does not 

construct roads, and 

WHEREAS, it is the policy of the fire department for fire engines and aerial apparatus to remain 

on solid surfaced roadways defined as asphalt or concrete surfaced pavement; and  

WHEREAS, clarification is needed for the use of unimproved/unopened rights-of-way in 

residential zones. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISION OF THE CITY OF 

TEXAS CITY, TEXAS, THAT: 

Section 1: That the Code of Ordinances of the City of Texas City, Texas Chapter 90, 

Section 90.012 Use of Unimproved/Unopened Rights of Way be amended as follows: 

§ 90.012 USE OF UNIMPROVED/UNOPENED RIGHTS-OF-WAY. 

An owner of real property within the city may be issued a permit to erect, construct and build a 

single-family residence adjacent to and accessible only by unimproved/unopened city-accepted 

right-of-way on the following conditions: 

(A)   The parcel of land upon which the residence is to be constructed shall be a minimum of two 

acres; 

(B)   The parcel of land has not been subdivided from a larger parcel of land since 1-18-1989, 

unless said subdivision occurred by city’s approval of a subdivision plat, plat amendment or replat; 

(B) No certificate of occupancy shall be issued unless and until all the requirements of this section 

are met; 

(C)   The parcel of land shall not be subdivided into smaller parcels unless approved by the city 

through a subdivision platting process; 



 

 

(D)   Only one single-family residence shall be constructed on the parcel of land for the purpose 

of homestead; 

(D) The property owner(s) shall construct and donate a street in accordance with the design 

standards and applicable provisions of Chapter 159 – Subdivisions, including the donation of 

additional rights of way if necessary; 

(E)   A maximum of four single-family residences may be accessed by the same 

unimproved/unopened right-of-way. If, however, an application to construct a fifth single-family 

residence is sought, the owner of each existing single-family residence shall participate in the city’s 

street assessment program for road improvements; 

(E) The street shall connect to an existing improved paved public street which is maintained by 

the City or other public entity; 

(F)   The property owner(s) shall construct and maintain an all-weather access road capable of 

providing ingress and egress to emergency vehicles on the unimproved/unopened right-of-way. 

The construction shall be in accordance with the plans and specifications approved by the City 

Engineer; and 

(F) The street shall be donated to the City for ownership and perpetual maintenance only after 

inspection and testing, final approval of the testing and inspection results by the City Engineer, 

and acceptance by the City.  The City may require the property owner(s) to provide the inspection 

and testing services prior to acceptance by the City;   

(G)   The city is not, nor shall it be, responsible for the construction, installation or maintenance 

of any road and/or roadside drainage improvements on the unimproved/unopened right-of-way. 

(G) The City shall only accept and maintain streets which comply with the requirements of Chapter 

159 - Subdivisions upon donation to the City and dedication to the public for use as a public street; 

and    

(H) The City is not, nor shall it be, responsible for the construction, installation or maintenance of 

any road and/or roadside drainage improvements on any unimproved/unopened rights of way not 

meeting the design standards and applicable provisions of Chapter 159 – Subdivisions.   

Section 2. This ordinance shall be cumulative of all provisions of the City of Texas 

City, Texas, except where the provisions of this Ordinance are in direct conflict with the provisions 

of such Ordinances, in which event the more restrictive provision shall apply. 

 

Section 3.  It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Commission of the City 

of Texas City that the phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, and sections of this Ordinance are 

severable, and if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance should be 

declared unconstitutional by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, 

such unconstitutionality shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, 

paragraphs or sections of this Ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City 

Commission without incorporation in this Ordinance of any such unconstitutional phrase, clause, 

sentence, paragraph or section. 



 

 

 

Section 4. All rights and privileges of the City of Texas City are expressly saved as to 

any and all violations of the provisions of any Ordinances affecting land use or development, which 

have accrued at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance; and, as to such accrued violations 

and all pending litigation, both civil and criminal, whether pending in court or not, under such 

Ordinances, same shall not be affected by this Ordinance but may be prosecuted until final 

disposition by the courts. 

 

 Section 5. That this Ordinance shall be read on three (3) separate days and shall 

become effective upon its final reading, passage, and adoption. 

 

Section 6. That this Ordinance shall be finally passed upon the date of its introduction 

and shall become effective from and after its passage and adoption and publication by caption only 

in the official newspaper of the City of Texas City, Texas 

 

 PASSED ON FIRST READING this ___ day of __________ 202___. 

 

 

________________________ 

Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor  

City of Texas City, Texas 

 

ATTEST:  

 

_______________________________ 

Rhomari D. Leigh 

City Secretary 

   

 

  



 

 

 

 PASSED ON SECOND READING this ___ day of __________ 202___. 

 

________________________ 

Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor  

City of Texas City, Texas 

 

ATTEST:  

 

_______________________________ 

Rhomari D. Leigh 

City Secretary 

 

 

  PASSED AND FINALLY ADOPTED this ___ day of _________ 202___. 

 

 

________________________ 

Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor  

City of Texas City, Texas 

 

 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

_______________________    _______________________   

Rhomari D. Leigh     Kyle L. Dickson 

City Secretary      City Attorney 

 



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG   Ord 13-52        
Meeting Date: 11/15/2023  
Amend the fiscal year 2023/2024 budget to include outstanding encumbrances from the
2022/2023 fiscal year.
Submitted For: Laura Boyd, Finance  Submitted By: Laura Boyd, Finance
Department: Finance

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider approval of a request to amend the fiscal year 2023-2024 budget to include
outstanding encumbrances from the 2022-2023 fiscal year.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
Purchase orders for purchases or projects outstanding at the end of the 2022-2023 fiscal year
are to be canceled and rolled into the current fiscal year 2023-2024.  Since encumbrances
impact budgets, the current fiscal year’s budget must be increased to reflect outstanding
encumbrances from the 2022-2023 fiscal year.
 
 

RECOMMENDATION
Recommend approval.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Ordinance 



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-44 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024 BUDGET TO 

INCLUDE OUTSTANDING ENCUMBRANCES FROM THE 2022/2023 

FISCAL YEAR; DIRECTING THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO FILE 

OR CAUSE TO BE FILED A COPY OF THE AMENDED BUDGET IN THE 

OFFICE OF THE GALVESTON COUNTY CLERK; DISPENSING WITH THE 

REQUIREMENT FOR READING THIS ORDINANCE ON THREE (3) 

SEPARATE DAYS; AND PROVIDING THAT THIS ORDINANCE SHALL 

BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE AND ADOPTION. 

 

WHEREAS, by Ordinance No. 2023-36 the City Commission of the City of Texas City, 

Texas, adopted its budget for Fiscal Year 2023-2024; and 

 

WHEREAS, a budget amendment is needed to close the 2022/2023 Fiscal Year Purchase 

Orders. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS: 

 

 SECTION 1: That the facts and matters set forth in the preamble of this Ordinance are 

hereby found to be true and correct. 

 

 SECTION 2: That the budget for Fiscal Year 2023 - 2024 of the City of Texas City, Texas, 

is hereby amended as follows: amend the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget to close 2022/2023 fiscal 

year purchase orders. 

 

 SECTION 3: That the chief executive officer shall file or cause to be filed a copy of this 

budget amendment in the office of the Galveston County Clerk. 

 

 SECTION 4: That the Charter requirement for reading this Ordinance on three (3) separate 

days has been dispensed by a majority vote of all members of the City Commission. 

 

 SECTION 5: That this Ordinance shall be finally passed and adopted on the date of its 

introduction and shall become effective from and after its passage and adoption. 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of November 2023. 

 

 

 

______________________________ 

Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor   

City of Texas City, Texas 

 

 



                                                                          

 

2 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

_______________________    ________________________________   

Rhomari D. Leigh     Kyle L. Dickson 

City Secretary      City Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (8) (g)        
Meeting Date: 11/15/2023  
to permanently rezone for Linda Duncan/Moses Lake Marina Boat and RV Storage from District "O"
(Open Space) to District "E-4" (Commercial Warehouse). 
Submitted For: Kim Golden, Transportation and Planning 
Submitted By: Veronica Carreon, Transportation and Planning
Department: Transportation and Planning

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider and take action on Ordinance No. 23-45 to permanently rezone for Linda
Duncan/Moses Lake Marina Boat and RV Storage from District "O" (Open Space) to District
"E-4" (Commercial Warehouse). 

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
The City Commission advertised and held a public hearing to receive comments in support
and opposition to the subject rezoning at its regular meeting on November 15, 2015, and then
gave preliminary zoning approval.  Texas City Code of Ordinances provides for preliminary
zoning approval to be made final by ordinance upon the application for a building permit within
12 months from the preliminary zoning approval.  Applicant received a building permit for
construction of the board and RV storage at 3902 SH 146 on December 8, 2015.  Therefore,
the requirements to finalize the zoning change have been met.  

RECOMMENDATION
The Building Official and Director of Engineering & Planning, having confirmed the
requirements for permanent rezoning have been met and that the subject property is in
compliance with the requirements of District E-4 Commercial Warehouse recommend
approval of the ordinance.  

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Ordinance for Permanent Rezoning of 3902 Hwy 146 
3902 Hwy 146 Permits 



 ORDINANCE NO. 23-___ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 40 OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF TEXAS CITY, GALVESTON COUNTY, 

TEXAS, ALSO KNOWN AS THE ZONING ORDINANCE, TO 

PERMANENTLY REZONE PROPERTY FOR LINDA DUNCAN/MOSES 

LAKE MARINA BOAT AND RV STORAGE FROM “O” (OPEN SPACE) TO 

“E-4” (COMMERCIAL WAREHOUSE)” BEING A 9.60 ACRE TRACT 

LOCATED IN THE 3900 BLOCK OF STATE HIGHWAY 146, TEXAS CITY, 

GALVESTON COUNTY, TEXAS; ORDERING SAID CHANGES MADE ON 

THE CITY ZONING MAP; CONTAINING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; 

PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF ALL ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT 

THEREWITH; DISPENSING WITH THE CHARTER REQUIREMENT FOR 

READING THIS ORDINANCE ON THREE (3) SEPARATE DAYS; AND 

PROVIDING THAT THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE 

FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE AND ADOPTION. 

 

WHEREAS, proper notice has been given and public hearing was held and given 

preliminary approval by the City Commission on November 15, 2015; and  

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Section 160.106(D)(3) the Building Official hereby 

provides notice that the applicant has requested a building permit for the requested uses so the 

preliminary zoning approval is ready to be made permanent; and  

 

WHEREAS, it is the considered opinion of the City Commission that said Zoning Ordinance 

be amended and changed to permanently rezone said property.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS: 

 

SECTION 1: That certain property described as being a 9.60 Acre tract located in the 3900 

block of State Highway 146, Texas City, Galveston County, Texas Texas City, Galveston County, 

Texas currently zoned as “O” (Open Space), is hereby rezoned and classified as “E-4” (Commercial 

Warehouse) to construct a marina and boat and RV storage with 200 stalls. 

 

SECTION 2:   That the City Engineer shall designate said changes from “O” (Open Space) 

to “E-4” (Commercial Warehouse), as hereinabove provided, on the original zoning map, as 

amended, and on the duplicate copy thereof kept in the Office of the City Planning Board.  

 

SECTION 3: That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

Ordinance are hereby repealed. In the event any section, clause, sentence, paragraph, or part of this 

Ordinance shall be for any reason adjudged by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such 

invalidity shall not affect, invalidate, or impair the remainder of this Ordinance.  

 

SECTION 4: That the Charter requirement for reading this Ordinance on three (3) separate 

days has been dispensed by a majority vote of the City Commission. 

 

 



------------------------------------- 

L: Res 12-105 Endorse Appointment/Reappointment to   2 

Galv. Cnty United Board of Health 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this _____th day of _____, 2023. 

 

 

 

 

                                                         

       Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor 

City of Texas City, Texas 

 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

                                                     _______________________________  

Rhomari D. Leigh     Kyle L. Dickson 

City Secretary      City Attorney 

 

 































































   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (8) (h)        
Meeting Date: 11/15/2023  
Amend Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget for repairs to Dike Road bridge.
Submitted For: Laura Boyd, Finance  Submitted By: Laura Boyd, Finance
Department: Finance

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Request City Commission approval to amend the 2023-2024 Fiscal Year Budget to account
for repairs to the Dike Road bridge.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
From Public Works: The Dike Road bridge is in dire need of repair.  The original plan for
Texas Department of Transportation to replace this bridge has been put on hold until 2027. 
The repairs are needed now.  The estimated cost is $250,000 and requires a budget
amendment from the Dike Fund Unassigned Fund Balance.

Budget Amendment:
Texas City Dike Fund (279) Department (301):
Maintenance of Parks & Stadiums    $250,000.00
Unassigned Fund Balance               ($250,000.00)
 

RECOMMENDATION
Recommend approval of the budget amendment.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Ordinance 



  ORDINANCE NO. 2023-46 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2023-36, ADOPTING THE 

2023-2024, FISCAL YEAR BUDGET TO APPROPRIATE FUNDS FOR THE 

REPAIRS TO THE DIKE ROAD BRIDGE; DISPENSING WITH THE 

REQUIREMENT FOR READING THIS ORDINANCE ON THREE (3) 

SEPARATE DAYS; AND PROVIDING THAT THIS ORDINANCE SHALL 

BECOME EFFECTIVE FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE AND ADOPTION. 

 

WHEREAS, by Ordinance No. 2023-36, the City Commission of the City of Texas City, 

Texas, adopted its budget for Fiscal Year 2023-2024; and 

 

WHEREAS, a budget amendment is needed to appropriate funds for repairs to the Dike 

Road bridge. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS: 

 

 SECTION 1: That the facts and matters set forth in the preamble of this Ordinance are 

hereby found to be true and correct. 

 

 SECTION 2: That the budget for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 of the City of Texas City, Texas, is 

hereby amended as follows: 

 

 Texas City Dike Fund (279) Department (301): 

 Maintenance of Parks and Stadiums                 $250,000.00 

 Unassigned Fund Balance          ($250,000.00) 

 

 SECTION 3: That the chief executive officer shall file or cause to be filed a copy of this 

budget amendment in the office of the Galveston County Clerk. 

 

 SECTION 4: That the Charter requirement for reading this Ordinance on three (3) separate 

days has been dispensed by a majority vote of all members of the City Commission. 

 

 SECTION 5: That this Ordinance shall be finally passed and adopted on the date of its 

introduction and shall become effective from and after its passage and adoption. 

  

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of November 2023. 

  

 

 

______________________________ 

Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor  

City of Texas City, Texas 

 

 

 



 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

_______________________    _______________________   

Rhomari D. Leigh     Kyle L. Dickson 

City Secretary      City Attorney 

 


	Agenda
	AI 7012 November 2023 Service Awards
	AI 70547054
	       ATT_attachment
	AI 7053 Emergency Management Report
	       ATT_Staff Report
	CITY OF TEXAS CITY��EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT�&�HOMELAND SECURITY
	Emergency Management department
	 
	Primary Responsibility of                  Emergency Management
	Stakeholders�
	Stakeholders�
	Stakeholders�
	Emergency alerts and warnings
	���Stay up to date:�
	Activated the EOC 17 times �since December  2022
	Activated the EOC 17 times �since December  2022
	Sitrep reports
	Thank You

	AI 70417041
	       ATT_Minutes
	AI 7027 Multi Departmental Vehicle Purchase
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	Sheet1

	       ATT_Exhibit B
	Sheet1

	       ATT_Exhibit C
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI 7029 Voting on the Election of Members of the Board of Directors for GCAD 24-25
	       ATT_attachment
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI 7030 ABHR Engagement Letter for Legal Representation in Connection with Proposed Minto Communities Development
	       ATT_ABHR Engagement Letter
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI 7031 Engineering Services For The City Of Texas City Water Line Replacement Project - Phase 21
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI 7032 Engineering Services For The City Of Texas City Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project - Phase 23
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI 7033 Engineering Services for the Lift Stations No. 7 and 15 Rehabilitation Project
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI 7038 First Payment to Gulf Coast Water Authority for Shannon Pump Station Rehabilitation
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI 7051 Award Commissioners' Community Grant to the Front Door Social & Charity Club (FDSCC)
	       ATT_IRS Verification
	       ATT_Grant Application
	       ATT_Scholarship Photo
	       ATT_School Supply Donation Pic
	       ATT_School Supply Donation Pic
	       ATT_Toiletries Donation Pic
	       ATT_Christmas Toy Donation Pic
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI 7044 Renewal of Professional Services Agreement with Texas City-La Marque Chamber of Commerce
	       ATT_Chamber Agreement
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI 70217021
	       ATT_Ordinance
	AI 70227022
	       ATT_Ordinance
	AI 70237023
	       ATT_Ordinance
	AI 70247024
	       ATT_Ordinance
	AI 7034 amending the Texas City Code of Ordinances entitled "General Regulations", Chapter 90: "Streets Sidewalks and Other Public Places" to adopt and become effective upon its final reading
	       ATT_FINAL Proposed revision to 90.012 - use of rights of way 
	AI 7039 Amend the fiscal year 2023/2024 budget to include outstanding encumbrances from the 2022/2023 fiscal year.
	       ATT_Ordinance
	AI 7043 to permanently rezone for Linda Duncan/Moses Lake Marina Boat and RV Storage from District "O" (Open Space) to District "E-4" (Commercial Warehouse). 
	       ATT_Ordinance for Permanent Rezoning of 3902 Hwy 146
	       ATT_3902 Hwy 146 Permits
	AI 7052 Amend Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget for repairs to Dike Road bridge.
	       ATT_Ordinance

